





































































































Annexure I1













































Annexure A

Regulatory /
Relevant

. A if
Sr Month / Year | Details of violations / observations / matters requiring attention or action | Authority (FMC / Action taken mount (i
No. any)

SEBI / Exchange /
Others**)
The major observations are:
¢ Funding of securities other than Group | equity shares under MTF
1 Feb 2020 ¢ Incorrect email id and mobile number in the UCC database
e Reporting of Incorrect data towards the monthly clients’ securities
balances
For other violations. the Exchange issued warning and advice. NSE Penalty 7,75,500
2 Dec 2020 Incorrect data uploaded in the weekly holding statement NSE Penalty 25000
3 Jan 21 Non adherence to the leverage and exposure limits for MTF NSE/SAT Penalty 25 00.000
4 May 2021 Corrective actions are taken by DP, for cases kept on hold — rejected by KRA CDSL Warning Nil
5 June 2071 e Submission of incorrect data in the weekly holding statement
e Non-settlement of funds and securities of inactive clients NSE Penalty 25000
e Settlement of funds or securities /commodities were not done on
6 Oct 2021 . o )
monthly/quarterly basis as specified by the client NCDEX Penalty 15000
November . . .
7 2021 Incorrect data submitted in the weekly holding statement NSE Penalty 100000
8 November Non-settlement of client funds NSE Advice Nil
2021
D
9 ecember Incorrect data uploaded in the weekly holding statement
2021 NSE Penalty 100000




10 Jan 2022 Non-settlement of client funds NSE Advice Nil
11 March 2022 | Non-settlement of client funds NSE Advice Nil
NSE Advi Nil
12 March 2022 | Non-settlement of client funds vice !
13 May 2022 Violations observed in Internal Audit Report for half year ended Sep 2021 BSE Penalty 13000
14 May 2022 Incorrect reporting of margin collected from clients to exchange NSE Penalty 39200
15 May 2022 Incorrect data submission towards weekly holding statement NSE Warning Nil
16 lune 2022 Incorrect data reported towards weekly Holding Statement as on April 29,
2022 NSE Penalty 100000
e Shortfall of clients’ funds to the maximum extent of Rs. 95.10 crores on
17 | July 2022 23 dates . o o
e Incorrect data submitted towards the weekly monitoring of clients
funds on few dates NSE Warning Nil
18 July 2022 e Non-settlement of client funds NSE Advice il
19 Aug 2022 ° Incorr.ec.t data towards weekly client level cash and cash equivalent
submission NSE Warning Nil
20 | October2022 | ® Non-settlement of client funds NSE Advice Nil
21 Dec 2022 Incorrect data in Wefekly holding supm|55|on
Non Settlement of client funds-Advice NSE Penalty 100000
22 April 2020 to | Violations observed in Internal Audit Report (NSE) for half year ended Sept
Sept 2020 | 2020 NSE Penalty 2000
23 Oct 2020 to | Violations observed in Internal Audit Report (NSE) for half year ended
March 2021 | March 2021 NSE Penalty 2000
20 April 2021 to | Violations observed in Internal Audit Report (NSE) for half year ended Sept
Sept 2021 | 2021 NSE Penalty 11000




25 Oct 2021 to | Violations observed in Internal Audit Report (NCDEX) for half year ended NCDEX Penalty 2000
March 2022 | March 2022

26 April 2021 to | The gap between two running account settlements is more than 90/30 MCX Advice Nil
March 2022 | days as the choice of client.
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12th Floor, The Ruby

§ ATH@@E & g@e ii 29 Senapati Bapat Marg

Chartered Accountants Dadar (West
Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel : +91 22 6819 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited
(Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited) (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as
at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™ in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our

audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed

in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
~audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
ancial statements.

5.R. Bathboi & Co. LLP, & Limited Liabitity Partnership with LLP ldentity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Biock "B’ 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

—

IT Systems and Controls

The financial accounting and reporting
systems  of  the Company are
fundamentally reliant on IT systems and
IT controls to process significant
transaction volumes.

Automated accounting procedures and [T
environment controls, which include IT
governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes,

access to programs and data and IT
operations, are required to be designed
and to operate effectively to ensure
reliable financial reporting,

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature
and complexity of the IT environment,
the assessment of the general [T controls
and the application controls specific to
the accounting and preparation of the
financial information is considered to be
a key audit matter,

Our audit procedures focused on the IT infrastructure
and applications relevant to financial reporting of the
Company:

* Tested the design and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s IT access controls over the information
systems that are important to financial reporting and
various interfaces, configuration and other identified
application controls.

* Tested IT general controls (logical access, changes
management and aspects of IT operational controls).
This included testing requests for access to systems
were reviewed and authorized.

* Tested the Company’s periodic review of access
rights. Also tested requests of changes to systems for
approval and authorization.

* In addition to the above, tested the design and
operating effectiveness of certain automated controls
that were considered as key internal controls.

* Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls in case deficiencies were
identified and, where necessary, extended the scope of
our substantive audit procedures.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is res
comprises the information included in the B

our auditor’s report thercon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financia
and, in doing so, consider whether such o
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

ther information is materia

ponsible for the other information. The other information
oard report, but does not include the financial

I statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
lly inconsistent with the financia]
to be materially misstated. If, based

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters sta

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the fin

position, financial performance including other comprehensive tnconie, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
dequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
Sampany and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregul

Q

statements and

ted in section 134(5) of the Act with

arities; selection and application of
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appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Mmanagement either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the F inancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a2 whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also-

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concernn.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events i
a manner that achieves fair presentation,

mmunicate with those charged with governance regarding, aniong other matters, the planned scope
huing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
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control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationsh; ps and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on onr independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2023 and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless faw
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained ail the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

(d} Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controis, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 27 to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act:

(h)} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:




S.R.B

Tisoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountantis

iii.

Y.

V1.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 38 to the financial statements:

The Company did not have any long~term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 63 (A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entitics (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 63 (B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any persou(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circunstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300003

j\(c,/- 2

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 23102102BGXJEH7386

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIRMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited) (“the
Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
Iknowledge and belief, we state that:

((1)(a)(A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i)(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(iXb)

(1))

(i}(d)

(ixe)

(ii)(a)

(i1)(b)

(iti)(a)

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and are verified by the management according to a phased programme designed to
cover all the items over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with the policy, the Company has physically verified certain property, plant and
equipment during the year and no discrepancies were noticed in respect of assets verified during
the vear.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii}(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As disclosed in note 53 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal
course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company
with such banks are in agreement with the audited books of accounts of the Company.

During the year the Company has provided loans, guarantees, advances in the nature of loans to
companies or other parties as follows:
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(Rs. in millions)
Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount
granted/ provided
during the year | NA NA 1,090,447 NA
- Companies or Other
parties

Balance outstanding as
at balance sheet date*

- Companies or Other | NA NA 13,119 NA

parties
*Balance outstanding is total outstanding (including unamortised processing fees) as at March 31,
2023

(iti}(b) During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans to companies or any other parties
are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(iii)(c) In respect of loans granted to companies, or other parties, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular except in the
following cases:

(Rs. in millions)

Name of the Amount Due date Extent of delay Remarks, if any
Entity

ESOP Loans has
been renewed or
repaid after March

Various Parties " 31, 2023 as per

(ESOP Loans) | 120.89 | 220320310 10 s | original loan

30-03-2023

agreements entered
into with the
borrower.

Various Parties

- 24-02-2023 to
(SMTF Loans) 3.45 31-03-2023 1to 35 days

(iti)(d} There are no amounts of loans granted to companies or any other parties which are overdue for
more than ninety days.

(11)(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(iti}(f) During the year, the Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties as stated below and none of these are granted
to promnoters or related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(Rs. in millions)

All Parties

Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans
- Repayable on demand
19,293.64

Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the total loans

17.63%

The Company has not advanced loans to directors / to a Company in which the director is
interested to which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and hence not
commented upon. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions
of sections 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and
security have been complied with by the Company.

In respect of deposits accepted or amounts which are deemed to be deposits, directives issued by
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under, to the extent applicable, have been
complied with. We are informed by the management that no order has been passed by the
Company Law Board, National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or
any other Tribunal.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

(vii)(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues

including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

There has been a delay in depositing provident fund dues under the Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 of an amount of Rs. 2.04 million pertaining to the period from
March 01, 2022 to February 28, 2023. The due date for depositing this amount is 15th of the
following month to which they pertain. As represented by the Company, the delay in the deposit
of provident fund within the stipulated time as the Aadhaar number of the new employees could
not be linked to their UAN as per the government norms. Further, the Company is making the
efforts to pay the amount and resolve the matter,

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise and value added tax.

(vii)(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income

tax, service tax, cess and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute. The dues outstanding in respect of service tax & goods and service tax on account of
dispute, are as follows:
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(Rs. in millions)

Nature of Period to which Forum where
Name of Statute dues Amount | the amount relates | dispute is pending
CESTAT -
Finance Act, 1994 | Service tax 058 | F.Y.2010-11 Ahmedabad
Goods and
IGST Act, 2017 Service Tax 031 ] F.Y.2019-20 State tax - Raipur
Goods and
SGST Act, 2017 Service Tax 0.03 | F.Y. 2019-20 State tax — Raipur
Goods and
CGST Act, 2017 Service Tax 0.03 | F.Y. 2019-20 State tax — Raipur

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of sales-tax, service tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise and value added tax.

(viti) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any fransaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
vear. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

{ix)(b} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(ix){(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(2)(d} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix){e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix){f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)}(a) The Company has utilized the monies raised during the year by way of public offer of debt
instruments for the purposes for which they were raised.

(x)(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotinent or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi){a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditer/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.
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(xi)(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii)}(a) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xif}(b) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii)(c) The Company is not a nidhj company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit System commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(xiv)(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicabie to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi}(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(xvi)(c)The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group as at March 31, 2023, hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii)  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year respectively.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 31 (a} to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
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(xx)(a)

information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
managenent plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to belicve that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in
note 33 (b) to the financial statements.

(xx)(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to

a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 33 (b) to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batiiboi & Co. LLP
artered Accountants

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 23102102BGXJEH7386

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NUVAMA WEALTH AND INVESTMENT LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS EDELWEISS BROKING LIMITED)

Report ou the Internal Financial Coutrols nnder Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nuvama Wealth
and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited) (“the Company™) as of March
31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidanee Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”),
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, as specified under section [43(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial Statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generalily accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have material effect on the financial statermnents.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
inchuding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materja] misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro stated iy the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration Number- 301003E/E300005

l\w*cz. W‘—D——_

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 23102102BGXJEH73 86

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 24, 2023



Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Balance Sheet

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Asat As at
MNotes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
financlal assets
{a) Cash and ¢ash equivalents 2 1,215.48 2,334.88
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 3,524.67 4,119.31
{c) Derivative finangiat instruments 4 3,123.98 200.70
{d} Securitles hetd for trading 5 3,030.00 1,931,867
{e) Trade receivables 6 5,458.20 2,996.31
{f} Loans 7 13,096.64 9,880.22
{c) Other financiai assets 8 15,997.89 10,048.51
45,446.86 31,491.61
rHon-financial assets
(2} Current tax assets (net) 9 160.32 24617
{b) Deferred tax assets {net} 10 47.69 94.87
[e) Froperty, Plant and Equipment 11 501.45 42044
{d) intangible assets 12 130.05 160.56
{e} Intangible assets under development 13 231.08 160.37
{f) Other non-financial assets 14 361.85 88.56
1,422.04 1,170.97
TOTAL ASSETS 45,869.30 32,662.58
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
{a} Derivative financial instruments 15 380.29 -
{b) Trade payables 16
(i} Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 37.07 17.13
{ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 13,101.12 14,112.82
enterprises
[c) Debt sacurities 17 21,638.69 8,945.64
(d) Borrowings {other than debt securities} 18 3,222.21 2,249.06
(e} Othet finaneial Habilities 19 1,075.09 1,361.69
39,454.47 26,686.24
Non-financial liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities {nat) 20 8,90 -
(b) Provisions 21 35.17 70.54
(c) Other non-financial liabifities 22 585.74 566.91
629.81 637.45
EQUITY
{a} Equity share capital 23 4,304.53 4,304.54
{b} Other equity 24 2,480.48 1,034.25
5,785.02 5,338.79
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 46,869.30 32,662.58
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 1-66
As per our report of even date attached
r 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf dFtixe Board of Directors
hartered Accountants
| Firm Registration Number; 301003€/E300005
i\ 0
VWS
per Shrawan alan Rakh Prashant Mady
Partner an Executive Director
ief Executive Officer
Membership No.: 102102 DINNDD387505 DIN: 03101048
Chiaf Financial Officer
Rohan Jadhay
Compony Secretary
Mumbai Mumbat

May 24, 2023 May 24, 2023




Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited}
Statement of Profit and Loss

{Currency : Indion rupees in milfions)

For the year ended For the year ended
Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations
Interest income 25 2,306,92 1,357.31
Rental income 26 29.08 26.42
fee and commission income 27 5,304.20 5,878.13
Net gain on fair value changes 28 484.61 383.16
Total Revenue from operations 12,125.00 8,645.02
Other income 29 31.27 32.35
Total Income 12,156.27 8,677.37
Expenses
Finance costs 20 1,584.80 583.49
Impairment on financial instruments 31 0.14 45,56
Employee benefits expense 32 3,798.75 2,818.29
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 11,12 263.26 231.38
Other expenses 33 4,652.48 3,552.61
Total expenses 10,299.43 7,242.33
Profit hefore tax 1,856.84 1,435.04
Tax expenses:
Current tax 387.29 -
Deferred tax 47.18 488.55
Profit for the year 1,422.37 946.49
Other Comprehensive Income |
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement {loss)/ gain on defined benefit plans (7.43} {9.74)
Other Comprehensive income {7.43) {9.74)
Totat Comprehensive Income 1,413.94 936.75
Earnings per equity share (Face value of ® 10 each): 35
(1) Basic 3.30 2.69
(2) Diluted 3.30 2.59
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financiaf statements 1-66

As per our report of even date attached

For 5. R, Batliboi & Co. LLP
artered Accountants
| Firm Registration Number: 301G03€/£300005

Ll‘av(#";;ﬁ

per Shrawan falan
Fartner

Prashant Mody
Executive Director

Membership No.: 102102

DIN: 03101048

Non Execptive Director
DIN: 07789572

Rohan jadhav
Compony Secretory

Chief Fifianciol Officer

Mumbai Mumbai
May 24, 2023 May 24, 2023




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited})

Statement of Cash Flows

{Currency ; Indion rupees in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 1,856.84 1,435.04
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 263.26 231.38
Pravisian far Expected Credit Loss (ECL) an Trade receivables, financial and non financial assets 0.14 46.56
Fair Value Gain on closing stock {21.91) {120.53}
[Gain)/ Lass on sale/ write-off of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangibles {net) {0.47) 0.46
Lease waiver and profit on pretermination of leases {8.45) (20.36)
Compensated absences {6.47} 7.09
Finance costs, incl. Bank guarantee commission 1,580.69 593.00
Dperating cash flow befare working capital changes 3,663.63 2,172.64
Add/ (fess): Adjustments for working copitol chonges
increase in trade receivables . (2,458.64) (2,095.82)
increase in Securities held for trading {1,096.46) {1,785.39}
Increase in fixed deposits, [oans and other financial assets {9,991.30) {9,511.19)
Increase in other non financial assets {273.30} {50.29)
{Decrease)/ Increase in Trade payables and other finangial Jiabilities £943,32) 3,744.44
{Decrease)f Increase in provisions and other non-financial fiabifities {17.49) 401.31
Cash flow from operatians {11,116.88) {7,124.30)
Income tax paid 292.54 170.26
Net cash used in operating activities - A (11,409.42) {7,294,56}
B  Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, Flant and Equipment, and intangible assets {117.93} {181.42)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment, and intangible assets 1.56 2.88
Net cash used in investing activities - B {116.37) {178.54)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds fram issue of equity share capital including securities premium - 1,000.00
Repayment of short term bozrowings {net) - [2,140.00)
Proceeds from secured working capital demand foan (net} 969.49 1,250.00
{Repayment of}/ Proceeds from unsecured werking capital demand loan and bank averdraft {net} (0.00) 990.00
Proceeds from issue of Deht securities 27,137.88 8,744.94
Repayment of Debt securities {16,063.50) -
Finance costs, incl. Bank guarantee commission [1,412.27) (558.07}
Interest paid an lease liability {46.46) {48.06}
Principal repayment of lease liability {171.76) {128.65)
Net cash generated from financing activities - C 10,406.38 9,110.16
Net {decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {1,119.41}) 1,637.06
0.00 indicates amaunts less thon 0.01 miflions
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 2,334.89 697.83

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year {refer note 2} 1,215.48 2,334.89




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited}

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued]

fCurrency : Indign rupees in millions)

Notes:

i. Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as se
Rules, 2015 {as amended from time ta time) under the Companies Act, 2013

#i, Cash receipts and payments for transactions with group companies in which the turnover is qu
on net basis in accordance with tnd AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows.

iii. Companents of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand

Balaznces with banks

~ in current accounts

As per our repart of even date attached
For 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

hartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

E\r‘cw”%"%

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Membership No,: 102102

Mumbai
May 24, 2023

t out in Ind AS 7 prescribed under the Companies Act {Indizn Accounting Standard)

ick, the amounts are large and the maturities are short are presented

For the year ended For the year ended
Mazch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,215.48 2,334.89
121548 2,334.89

Farand on he \aIf of the Board of Directors

%

Prashant Mody
anaging Director & Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer
- 00387505 DIN:; 03101048

Noh Executive Director Chief Finonciol Officer

Rohan Jadhav
Compaony Secretory

Mumbai
May 24, 2023




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known

Statement of Changes in Equity

{Currency : Indion rupees in millions)

as Edelweiss Broking Limitad)

Asat As at
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a) Equity share eapital
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,304.54 3,471.90
Change in equity share capital during the year {refar note 23) - 832.64
Balance as at the end of the year 4,304.54 4,304.54
b) Other equity
Securities premium Deemed capital Debentire Redemption Retained earnings Total
{refer note a helow) contributien - ESGP Reserve (refer notec | [refer noted below)
{refer note b below} balow)

Balance at Barch 31, 2021 432.34 30.42 - {572.18) {100.52)
Additions on issue of equity shares 167.36 - - - 167.36
Profit for the year - - - 946.49 946.4%
Other comprehensive income - - - {2.74) (9.74}
Reversal of ESOF cost on cancellation - - - 30.56 20.56
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - - 207.83 {207.83) -
Balance at March 31, 2022 592.70 39.42 207.83 187.30 1,024.25
Additions on issue of equity shares - - - - .
Profit for the year - - - 1,422.37 1,422.37
Other comprehensive income - - - (7.43) (7.43)
Reversal of ESOP cost on cancellation - - - 3129 31.29
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - - - - -
8alance at March 31, 2023 589.70 39.42 207.83 1,633.53 2,480.48

Hotes:
a) Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares.

the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Deemed capital contribution - ESOP

The raserve can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the provisians of

Deemed capital contribution relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Group by the Edelweiss Finencial Sarvices Limited, under its emplaoyee share

option plan.

¢} Debenture Redemption Reserve

Debenture redemption resarve represents reservas created as per the Companies Act,

2013 w.r.t. outstanding redeemable debentares out of free reserves. The amounts

credited 16 the debenture redemption raserve may rot be utfised except to redeem dabentures. On redemption of debenturas, the amaunt may be transferred from
debenture redemption reserve ta retained earnings.

d) Retained earnings

Retained earnings comprises of the Company's undistributed garnings after taxes.

As per our report of even date attached
For 5.R, Batliboi & Ce. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300003

heovs™™ . :

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Mambership No.: 102102

Mumbai
May 24, 2023

for and on behalf\gf the Boapdof Directors

Prashant Mody
Executive Director

DIN: 00387505 DiN: 03101048

Non Expcutive Director
DIN: 07789972

< -

4

Rohan Jadhav
Company Secretary

Mumbat
May 24, 2023




Muvama Wealth and Investment Limited {(Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited}
Motes to the financial statements

for the year ended Morch 31, 2023

1.1 Background

Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited) (“the Company”}
was incorporated on February 7, 2008. The Company is a 100% subsidiary of Nuvama Wealth Management
Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited). PAGAC Ecstasy Pte. Limited Is the Ultimate
Holding Company of the Company. The registered office is [ocated at 2nd Floor, Office No. 201-203, Zodiac
Plaza, Xavier College Road, Off C G Road, Ahmedabad 380009.

The Company is registered as a trading member with National Exchange of India Limited ('NSEIL’), BSE
Limited {‘BSE’) and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI), Multi-commodity Exchange of
india Limited (MCX), National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange Limited {NCDEX) and provides broking
services to the clients. The Company is also registered as Depository Participant with National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL), Central Depository Services {Iindia) Limited (CDSL) and also registered as
Repository Participant with National E-Repository Limited {NERL) and CDSL Commodity Repository Limited
{CCRL). The Company is registered as Research Analyst with Securities and Exchange Board of India {SEBI)
and Corporate agent (Composite) with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDA).
The Company is registered as Point of Presence (PoP) under the National Pension System {NPS} with Pension
Fund Regulatory and Development Authority and Real Estate Agent with Maharashtra Real Estate
Regulatory Authority, Uttar Pradesh Real Estate Regulatory Authority, Haryana Real Estate Regulatory
Authority Panchkula. The Company is also a distributor for various financial products such as Mutual Funds,
Bonds, NCD, PMS, Structured Products & Alternative Investment fund etc.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting

Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive incorme (FVOCI}
instruments, derivative financial instruments, and other financial assets held for trading, which have been
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees (INR)} in millions, except when otherwise indicated.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global heaith pandemic from COVID-18

The outbreak of COVID - 19 pandemic has affected several countries across the world, including India. The
Government is undertaking several measures to restrict the spread of virus and provide financial support
to some stressed sectors. Further, while the COVID-19 vaccination efforts have gained momentum,
uncertainty due to the resurgence of COVID cases across many parts of India is rising. The extent to which
COVID-18 pandemic will impact the Company, if any, depends on future spread of the virus and related
developments, which are uncertain at this point of time. There has been no material change in the controls
or processes followed in the closing of the financial statements of the Company.

In preparing the accompanying financial results, the Company’s management has view that there is no
material impact of the pandemic on its operations and its assets as at March 31, 2023.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023

1.3 Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its Balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division Ill of the
Schedute Hl to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date {current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current} is

presented in note 38,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are oniy
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net

basis in all of the following circumstances:

e  The normal course of business
¢ The event of default
e The event of insclvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

Significant accounting policies

1.4 Recognition of interest

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate {(EIR) method for all financial
instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FYOCL The EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross

carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are

an integral part of the EiR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents

the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial asset. Hence, it
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other

characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalty interest and charges.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk,

the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the

balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income,

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets

other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Company
calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost {net of expected credit loss) of the
financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to

calculating interest income on a gross basis.




Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023

i5 Financial Instruments
a) Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial {iabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,
This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. The Company
recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

b) Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initfally measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss are
recognised immediately in profit or oss.

c) Day 1 profit orloss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair
value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. in
those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or
loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

1.6 Classification of financial instruments

a) Financial assets:

The Company dlassifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and
the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

e Amortised cost
=  Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI]
o  Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]

The Company measures financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.




Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited {Formerly known as Edeiweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023
1.6 Classification of financial instruments {Continued)

Debtinstruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income {except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or
toss on initial recognition):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FYTPL.
i. Amortized cost and Effective interest method:

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit [osses, to the
amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

i. Investment in equity instruments
The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss.
b} Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees, and
derivative financial liabilities.

¢} Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
interest rate, market risk.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Motes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023

1.6 Classification of financial instruments {Continued)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into
and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other barrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR.

d) Financial assets and Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial labilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under ind AS 109.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recorded in profit and loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL s
accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/
premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets
mandatorily required to be measured at FYTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate.

e) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its [iabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognized at the proceeds
received.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own
equity instruments.

1.7 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

a} Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the
extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the difference recognised as a
derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not
result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company
records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.
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1.7

1.8

i.9

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities {Continued)

b) Derecognition of financial assets {other than due to substantial modification):

Afinancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Company
also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies
for derecognition. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial asset and the
consideration received would be recognised in profit or loss.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:
e  The Company has transferrad its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or

e |tretains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement.

¢) Derecognition of financial liabilities:

Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires,
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, would be
recoghised in profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss aliowance on trade
receivables, The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime (Expected Credit Lass (ECL) at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However if receivables contain a significant
financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure expected credit losses.

For ESOP funding and Receivables towards Margin Trading Funding, the Company recognises lifetime ECL
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk {SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand,
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
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1.9 impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit fosses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an
evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after

the reporting date.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default {LGD) {i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default {EAD). The assessment of the PD and
LGD is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the EAD, for financial assets,
this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for lean commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the

debtars, and other relevant forward-looking infarmation.
Company categories its ESOP funding and Receivables towards Margin Trading Funding as follows:

Stage 1 assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL

{resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition. For these assets lifetime ECL are recognised.

Stage 3 assets:

Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans. The

method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

For all other financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to

their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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1.13

Coliateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, and letters of guarantees. Collateral, unless
repossessed, is not recorded on the balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the
calculation of ECLs. Itis generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis.
However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining requirements, is valued
daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.
Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models.

Collateral repossessed

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal
operations or should be sold, Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to
their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held for
sale at their fair value {if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the
repossession date in, line with the Company’s policy.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially orin their entirety only when the Company has no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation technigues
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. in order
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1,14

Detarmination of fair value {Continued)

to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of
valuation techniques, as summarised below:

e Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

2 Level 2 financial instruments — Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument's life.

¢ Level 3 financial instruments - Those that inciude one or more unobservable input that is significant to
the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews
its vaiuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations. However, the
base models may not fully capture all factors relevant to the valuation of the Company’s financial
instruments such as credit risk (CVA}, own credit {DVA) and/or funding costs (FVA).

e Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its
financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates
the expected net exposure per counterparty over the fuli lifetime of the individual assets, in order to
reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-coliateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized when
(or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an
asset) to a customer. An assetis transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset. When
(or as} a performance obligation is satisfied, the Company recognizes as revenue the amount of the
transaction price (excluding estimates of variable consideration) that is allocated to that performance
obligation. The Company applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

i) Identification of contract{s) with customers;
ii) [dentification of the separate performance obiigations in the contract;

iii) Determination of transaction price;
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1.14

1.15

Revenue from contract with customer {Continued)

iv} Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and

v} Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance ebligation is satisfied

The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

a. Brokerage income on securities broking business is recognised as per contracted rates at the execution
of transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date and is reflected net of related goods and
service tax {(“GST"}.

b. Fee income including advisory fees, referral fees, commission income, and transaction fees is
accounted at a point in time as the customer receives and consumes the henefits.

c. Interest on delayed payments are recognised as revenue on certainty of realisation.

d. Research services fee income is accounted when there is reasonable certainty as to its receipts.
e. Interestincome is recognized on accrual basis.

Leases

Company as a lessee:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a peried of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right of use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of Use Asset

The Company recognizes right of use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right of use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right of use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right of use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the [ease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
{including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable jease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
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1.17

Leases (Continued)

Lease Liabilities (Continued)

the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease iiabilities is remeasured if

there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate {"|BR’} to measure lease liabilities. Incremental borrowing rate is the rate of
interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right of use asset in a similar economic
environment.

Short term lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of
property that has lease term of 12 months or less (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option}. The Company recognises lease
payment associated with these leases as an expense on a straightline basis over lease term (refer note 33).

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could oceur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year, Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the Parent.
Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on manetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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1.18 Retirement and other employee benefit

Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a defined

contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the

statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obfigation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine

its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial

valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognises each period of services as giving rise to

additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the financial

obligation.

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for

determining the present value are hased on the market vields on Government securities as at the balance

sheet date.

Benefits in respect of gratuity are funded with an Insurance Company approved by Insurance Regulatory

and Development Authority (IRDA).

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and |osses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts

includedin netinterest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts

included in netinterest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet

with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or {0ss in subsequent periods.

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual leave

entittement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the statement

of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on

a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the

projected unit credit method.
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1.15 Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services that are granted
by Edelweiss Financial Service Limited {EFSL) and current Holding Company Nuvama Wealth Management
Limited {(NWML} (formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited (ESL)} are measured by reference to the fair value

of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments of NWML and EFSL

is expensed in employee benefit expenses over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original

estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate. [n cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, the

Company treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a different vesting

period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs,

1.20 Property, plant and equipment and Right of Use Assat

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are

accounted for by changing the amortization period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes

in accounting estimates.

Subseguent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying

amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and

maintenance are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets {(other than freehold land and properties

under construction} less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written

down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In

respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.
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i.z20 Property, plant and equipment and Right of Use Asset (Continued)

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule I for calculating
the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as fotlows:

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Mature of assets Estimated usefut life

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Computers - Servers and networks 6 years

Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. B w”w_;,w\;géwr?wwWWWWHM S

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the period of lease whichever is earlier.

Right of use assets are presented together with property and equipment in the statement of financial
position — refer to the accaunting policy 1.15. Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis at
the lower of lease term or useful life.

An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognized as assets is derecognized at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

1.21 Intangible assets

The Company’s intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is
recognized only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
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1.21 Intangible assets {Continued)

Intangibles such as software is amartized over a period of upto 5 years based on its estimated useful life.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal {i.e., at the date the recipient abtains control) or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upan
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposat proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets under development
Intangible assets under Development includes Software under development.

Research costs are expensed as Incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are

recognised as an intangibie asset when the Company can demonstrate:

i The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use

or sale.
it. Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset
iii. How the asset will generate future economic benefits
iv. The availability of resources to complete the asset
v, The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected

future benefit.

1.22 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be

impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the

recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of

cash generating unijt which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is

reduced to its recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or Cash

Generating Unit's {CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. The reduction is treated as an impairment lass
and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that

a previously assessed impairment |oss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset

is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

1.23  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalentin the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits

with an original maturity of three months or less.
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1.24

1.25

Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
apast event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settie the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash fiows to net present value using an appropriate
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liahility.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company,
where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Income tax expenses
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

a) Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductibie in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax hases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxahle profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary difference, unused
tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable temporary differences which
are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of deductible temporary difference or in periods in which
a tax loss can be carried forward or back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023

1.25 Income tax expenses {(Continued)

extent it is probable that:

¢ the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible temporary

difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

e  tax planning opportunities are availabfe that will create taxable profit in appropriate periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates [and tax laws) that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabiiities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

c} Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax

are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

d) Minimum alternate tax (MAT)

MAT paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company recognises
unused MAT credit as a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it is probable that the Company will be
able to utilise during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried
forward. In the year in which the Company recognises deferred tax asset (MAT credit} as an asset, the said
assetis created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company reviews the MAT asset
at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is not probable that the Company will

be able to utilise it during the specified period.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
MNotes to the financial statementis

for the year ended March 31, 2023

1.26 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies the management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actuai results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

b) Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interestincome / expense using a rate of return that represents
the best estimate of a canstant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of laans given/ taken and
recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle.

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense that are integral parts of the
instrument.

c) Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that itis probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses where the Company believes
that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the estimated future taxable income which
in turn is based on approved business plans and budgets. The losses are allowed to be carried forward to
the years in which the Company expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2023

1.27 Standards issued but not notified (in accounting policy)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption
of this amendment is annual periods beginning an or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the Company’s financial statements.

Ind AS & - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors -Thisamendment has introduced
a definition of accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so
that it does not apply to transactions that give rise ta equal and offsetting temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

2  Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
-in current accounts 1,215.48 2,334.89

1,215.48 2,334.89

3 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposits (refer note 47) 3,524.67 4,119.31

3,524.67 4,119.31

4  Derivative financial instruments

Premium paid on outstanding exchange traded options 1,415.90 .
Embedded derivatives in market linked debentures 1,708.08 200.70

3,123.98 200.70




MNuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financiai statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

4a

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes. These include hedpes that either meet the hedge accounting requirements or hadges that are economic hedges, but
the Company has elected not 1o apply hedge accounting requirements.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial Instruments recorded as assets or Habilities together with their notianal amounts.

Particulars

{i) Embedded derivatives**
In market linked debentures

Subtotal{i)
{i}) Equity linked derivatives
Stock Futures
Options purchased
Options sold (written]
Less: Offset with Margin
Subtotal{il}
{iii} Index linked derivatives
Index Futures
Options purchased
Options sold (written)
Less: Offset with Margin
Subtotalfir)

Tatal Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars

{i} Embedded derivatives**
In market linked debentures

Subtatal(iy
{1i) Equity linked derivatives
Stack Futures
tess: Offset with Margin
Subtatal(il)
{iii} tndex linked derivatives
Index Futures
{ass: Offset with Margin

Subtotalliiiy

Total Derivative Firancial Instruments

As at March 31, 2023

Unit Currency Notional * Fair value Aszet Unit Currancy Notional * Eair value liability
1,708.08 -
1,708.08 b
Mo of Shares 103,582 4.11 ] NoefShares 32,925 0,74
Mo of Shares 149,107 17.18
No of Shares 149,107 1,28
{4.11) 0.74)
17.18 3.28
Index Units 372,200 123.94 ¢ index Units 56,175 3140
Index Units 958,900 1,398.72 -
Index Units 559,650 176,01
{12394} {11.40)
1,398.72 376.01
Total 3,123.92 Total 380.2%
As at March 31, 2022
Unit Currency Notional * Fair value Asset Uait Currency Notional * Fair value liability
200.70 i
200.70 -
- No of Shares 137,500 5.75
- {5.75)
Index Units 65,550 0.83 .
{0.83} .
Total 200.70 Total -

* The notional column represents quantity in case of Equity and Index linked derivatives. The notional / units held indicate the value of transactions outstanding at the year end and are not

indicative of either the market risk of credit risk.

**an embedded derivative Is a component of & hybrid instrument that afso includes a nen-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash {lows af the combined instrumeit
vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. Refer Note 1.6 (c] for further details.
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : indian rupees in miflions)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
5 Securities held for trading
{ot Fair volue through Profit and Lass occaunt, within India)

Equity shares 45.86 1,407.23

Mutual fund 1,228.98 -

Debt securities 1,755.16 504.44
3,030.00 1,911.67

Please refer note 45 - Fair value meosurement for valuation methodology for securities held for trading.

6 Trade receivables

Receivables considered good - Secured 2,590.04 2,112.68
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 2,882.00 889.13
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Receivables - Credit impaired 127.72 138.98
5,599.76 3,140.7%
Less : Impairment allowance
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 13.84 5.50
Receivablas - Credit impaired 127.72 138.98

5,458.20 2,996.31
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Fermerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miflions)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
7 Loans
(At amaortised cost, within India)
ESOP funding 7,983.20 4,455.90
Margin trading facility 5,117.74 5,425.97
Total Gross 13,100.94 9,881.87
Less : Impairment allowance {4.30) {1.65)
Total Net 13,096.64 9,880.22
i} Secured by securities
ESOP Funding 7,510.49 4,416.34
Margin trading facility 5,115.91 5,424.30
Total (i) 12,626.40 9,840.64
ii) Unsecured
ESOP Funding 472.71 39.56
Margin trading facility 1.83 1.67
Total {iiy 474.54 41.23
Total Gross {i)+{ii) 13,100.94 9,881.87
Less : impairment allowance {4.30) {1.65})
Total Net 13,096.64 9,880.22
Loans in india
Public sector - -
Others 13,100.94 9,881.87
Total Gross 13,100.94 9,881.87
Less : impairment allowance (4.30) (1.65)

Total Met 13,096.64 9,880.22




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

8  Otherfinancial assets

Security deposits - Rent 113.94 112.11
Less: Impairment of rent deposits {0.14) -
Other deposits 6.79 6.13
Less: Impairment on other deposits {2.06) {0.61)
Deposits placed with exchange/ depositories 32.98 30.37
Less: Impairment on exchange deposits {2.08) {2.08)
Receivabte from exchange/ clearing house (net) 881.55 648.94
Margin with exchange/ clearing house 14,936.05 9,151.04
Advances recoverable in cash for value to be received 20.87 102.56

15,997.89 10,048.51




Muvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited})

Notes to the financial statemants {Continued}

{Currency : Indian rupees in miflions}
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
9  Current tax assets (net}

Advance income taxes 160.32 246.17
{net of provision for tax < 398.16 millions {P.Y. X 74.12 millions)

160.32 246,17
10 Deferred tax assets {nat}
Deferred tax assets
Trade receivables, Loans and other financial assets
Provision for expected credit losses 37.79 37.45
Property, plant and eguipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation 22,56 27.52
Emplovee benefit obligations
Provision for Gratuity and compensated absences 5.07 6.69
Unused tax losses
Accumulated Losses - 19.86
Right of Use asset net off Lease Liability 18.50 23.25
Others 7.06 2,98
90.98 117.75
Deferred tax liabilities
Financial instruments
Fair valuation of securities held for trading/ derivative instruments 14.52 22.88
Borrowings
Unamortised loan origination costs - EIR on bhorrowings 28.77 -
43,29 22.88

et Deferred tax assets {net} 47.69 94.87
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Nuvama Wealth and Invesiment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

MNotes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
14 Other non-financial assets
{Unsecured Considered good, unless stated otherwise}
Deposits 9.46 5.21
Prepaid expenses 78.00 4517
Vendor Advances 51.63 25.40
Advances recoverable in kind for value to be received 5.58 3.23
Advances to employees 1.80 1.55
Recoverable from court {refer Note 40¢} 215.38 -

361.85 88.56
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly khown as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

17 Debt securities
(At amortised cost, within India)

Secured

Non-convertible redeemable debentures

Privately Placed Non-convertible debentures 11,582.84 2,233.53
(Pari-Passu charge by way of hypothecation on all Current Assets (excluding

Receivables and securities held on account and behalf of the clients and

Secured by charge over the shares of Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

(Formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited) held by Nuvama Wealth

Management Limited {Formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited})

Public issue Non-convertible debentures 2,977.42 -
[variable rate of interest]

(Secured by charge over the shares of Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited

{Formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited) held by Nuvama Wealth

Management Limited {Formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited})

Unsecured
Commercial paper 7,210.00 6,800.00
Less : Unamortised discount (131.57} {87.89)

7,078.43 6,712.11

21,638.69 8,545.64




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {(Continued)

{Currency : Indion rupees in millipns)

17a

Maturity profile and rate of interest of debt securities are set out below:

Redeamable non-convertible debentures {refer note below) :

Month As at As at
Mach 21, 2023 March 31, 2022
Jan-24 870.83 747.22
Mar-24 589.13 -
Jan-25 35.03 3192
Mar-25 155,20 34.35
Apr-25 18.68 17.07
May-25 62.43 53.03
Jun-25 17¢.03 89.31
Jul-25 1,012.47 863.99
Aug-25 1,132.01 396.64
Sep-25 1,645.57 -
Oct-25 1,857.54 -
Nov-25 1,536.08 -
Dec-25 1,318,543 -
Apr-26 387.26 -
May-26 403.65 -
fun-26 388.38 -
11,582.84 2,233.53
Comrmercial paper
As at As at
Month Rate of interest| 1 arch 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Apr-22 5.90% - 3,000.00
May-22 5.85% . 2,500.00
Jul-22 7.00% - 100.00
Qct-22 from 8.00% to 8.25% - 550.00
Dec-22 from 7.25% to 8.00% - 150.00
lan-23 8.40% - -
Feb-23 2.55% - 500.00
Mar-23 from 7.40% to 8.55% - -
May-23 from 8.25% t0 9.15% . -
Jun-23 7.80% - -
Apr-23 8.50% 400.00 -
May-23 from 8.25% to 9.25% 3,000.00 -
jun-23 from 7.80% to 9.00% 2,160.00 -
Jul-23 from 7.80% to 9.00% 1,100.00 -
Feb-24 8.65% 500.00 -
Mar-24 8.30% 50.00 B
Less: Unamortised Discount {131.57) (87.89)
7,078.43 6,712.11




Nuvama Woealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

MNotes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}
17a  Maturity profile and rate of interest of debt securities are set out below {Continued ):

PFublic issue Non-convertibie debentures

Month Rate of Interest As at As at
March 31, 2023 mMarch 31, 24022
Jul-24 8.75% 419.88 -
Jul-25 from 8.80% to 9.15% 1,236.46 -
Jul-27 from 9.16% 1o 9.55% 846.08 -
Jul-32 from 9.53% to 9.55% 478.02 -
Add : Interest accrued** 111.29 -
3,091.73 -
Note:

Details of Market linked debentures:

Market linked debentures are secured by pari passu charge, as the case may be, on all Current Assets {excluding
Receivables and securities held an account and behalf of the clients and Secured by charge over the shares of Nuvama
Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited) held by Nuvama Wealth Management
Limited {Formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited)}.

In case of market linked debentures, the interest rate is linked to the performance of the underlying benchmark and is
fluctuating in nature.

** interest accrued but not due is payable on next interest payment date for respective ISINs.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : indian rupees in milfions)

18

19

Borrowings {other than debt securities)
(At amartised cost, within India)

Short-term borrowings
Secured

Termn loan from Banks

{Secured by charge on trade receivables, fixed deposits and corporate
guarantee from Holding Company)

{Interest rate ranging from 7.50% to 10.25% p.a. (P.Y. : 6.75% to
5.50% p.a.))

Unsecured
Interest acrued on Group Company borrowings

Bank overdraft
(Interest rate 8.60% p.a. {P.Y.: 7.25% p.a.}

Term loan from Banks
(Interest rate 8.20% p.a. {P.Y.: 6.75% p.a.}

Other financial liabilities

Other payables

Book overdraft

Accrued salaries and benefits

Payable to exchange/ clearing house (net)
Deposits from sub-brokers

Retention money payable

Advances from customers

Lease Lizbility

0.00 indicates amounts less than 0.01 millions

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2,226.01 1,257.75
3.04 -
792.44 790.16
200.72 201.15
3,222.21 2,249.06
26.42 68.20
0.00 3.75
360.53 248.12
- 0.12
130.67 180.08
0.58 0.98
91.55 455.26
465.34 405.18
1,075.09 1,361.69




Muvama Wealih and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
20 Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for taxation 8.90 -
{net of Tax Deducted as Source and advance tax % 378.39 millions {P.Y.:
Nil}
8.90 -
21 Provisions
Gratuity 15.04 43,94
Compensated leave absences 20.13 26.60
35.17 70.54
22 Other non-financiai Habilities
Amount received in advance 401.22 418.54
Statutory dues* 183.88 147.28
Qthers 0.64 1.09
585.74 566.91

* includes withholding taxes, provident fund, profession tax and other statutory dues payables.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited}
Notes to the financial statements [Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Asat
March 31, 2023

23  Equity share capital

As at
March 31, 2022

Autharised:
463,300,000 {P.Y. 463,300,000) £quity Shares of X 10 each 4,633.00 4,633.00
10,000,000 (P.Y. 10,000,000) Preference Shares of X 10 each 100.00 100,00
4,733.00 4,733,00
Issued, subscribed and paid up:
430,454,000 (P.Y. 430,454,000) £quity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid-up 4,304.54 4,504.54
4,304.54 4,304.54
Movement in share copital : March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,304,54 247190
Shares issued during the year - 832.64
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,304.54 4,304,594

Terms/ rights attached to equity shoares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par vatue of T 10/-, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to ane vote per share heid. In the event of
Tiquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of ali preferential amounts.

The distribution wil! be in proportion te the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by the Holding Company ! March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

% %

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited), and its 100% 100%
nominees

100% 100%

Details of shores held by Pramaters :

Mo of shares
[including shares
held by nominees})

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited) 430,454,000
No af shares
[including shares

held by nominees})

Nuvama Weaith Management Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited) 430,454,000

As at March 31, 2023

% holding

100°%

As at March 31, 2022

% holding

300%

% change during
the year

% change during
the year

100%




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Motes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in milfions}

24

a)

b)

c)

d}

Other Equity

Securities premium account - Opening balance
Add : Additions during the year

Debenture Redemption Reserve - Opening balance
Add : Additions during the year

Deemed capital contribution - ESOP

Retained earnings - Opening Balance
Add: Reversal of ESOP cost on cancelfation / lapsed
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year
Amount available for appropriation
Appropriations:
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve

Total{a+ b+ c+d}

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
588,70 43234
- 167.36
599.70 599,70
207.83 -
- 207.83
207.83 207.83
39.42 39.42
187.30 (572.18)
31.29 30.56
1,422.37 946.49
{7.43) (9.74)
1,633.53 395,13
- (207.83)
1,633.53 187.30
2,480.48 1,034.25




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miflions}

25 Interest income
{On Financial assets measured at amortised cost}

On ESOP funding

On Margin Trading Facitity
On fixed deposits

On margin with brokers
On delayed payment
Others

26 Rental Income

27 Fee and commission income

Income from Broking
Advisory and other fees

Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers:

Service transferred at a point in time
Service transferred over time
Total revenue from contract with customers

28 Net gain on fair value changes at FVTPL

(A) Securities held for trading

Profit on trading of securities held for trade {net)
Profit/ (Loss) on equity derivative instruments (net}

Loss on currency derivative instruments (net)
Total Net gain on fair value changes
Fair value changes:
Realised

Unrealised
Total Net gain an fair value changes

29 Other income

Interest on income tax refund
Miscellaneous income

for the year ended
March 31, 2023

for the year ended
March 31, 2022

560.49 143,09
781.95 600.79
203.73 175.27
669.54 338.87

88.59 97.70
2.62 1.59
2,306.92 1,357.31
29.08 26.42
29,08 26.42

2,975.52 2,948.79

6,328.87 3,929.34

9,304.39 6,878.13

9,170.48 6,792.50
133.90 85.64

9,304.38 6,878.14
326.01 420.82
158.60 (32.05)

. (5.61)
484.61 383.16
426.91 293.12

57.70 90.04
484.61 383.16
3.49 -
27.78 32.35
31.27 32.35




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

30

31

32

Finance costs
{On Finoncial liabilities measured at emortised cost)

Interest on Inter-corporate deposits
Interest on bank overdraft

Interest an loan from group companies
Interest on term foan from banks

Cost of Market linked debentures
Discount on commercial paper
interest on Public issue Non-convertible debentures
Financial and bank charges

interest on Margin

Interest Expenses on lease liabilities
interest - others

Impairment on financial instruments
(On Financiol instruments meosured at amartised cost)

Bad-debts {written back)/ written off {net}
Provision for expected credit losses - Trade receivables, Loans
Impairment on other financial assets

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme {ESOP}*
Staff welfare expenses {refer note 48}

Expanse on Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR)*

far the year ended

for the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
- 20.69
34.50 3.18
124,72 289.06
153.48 38.77
569,28 19.98
388.14 64.82
217.54 -
46.58 108.45
3.00 0.47
46.46 48.06
1.10 0.01
1,584.80 593.49
{1.18) {0.22)
{0.28) 46.17
1.60 0.61
0.14 46.56
3,425.69 2,547.67
156.04 120.94
87.71 53.70
121.34 88.77
7.97 7.21
3,798.75 2,818.29

*Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL”) has granted an ESOP/Stock appreciation rights (SAR) option to acquire equity
shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to the Company's employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL
has charged the fair value of such stock options, and the Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same

under the employee cost.

*Nuvamna Wealth Management Limited {'NWML") {Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited [(‘ESL)), the Holding
Company has Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP} in force. Based on such ESOP schemes, NWML has granted an ESOP option
t0 acquire equity shares of NWML that would vest in a graded manner to company’s employees.

The indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the Provident Fund and the Gratuity
Act and rules there under. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder on November 13,
2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will
evaluate the rules, assess the impact, if any, and account for the same once the rules are notified and become effective.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millians)
for the year ended  for the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
33 Other expenses

Advertisernent and business promotion {refer naote 48) 255,51 137.42
Auditors' remuneration frefer note 33a) 6.14 8.22
Ciearing & custodian charges 93.07 66.82
Communication 64.56 55.68
Computer expenses 504.22 346.60
Computer scftware 353.67 211.54
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 33b) 6.91 -
Dematerialisation charges 42.56 51.66
Directors’ sitting fees 0.70 0.04
Donation 0.02 0.42
Electricity charges 25.19 20.33
Foreign exchange loss {net) 0.07 0.11
Goods & Service tax expenses 47.44 19.52
Insurance 4.82 3.21
Legal and professional fees 181.57 129.79
{Profit)/ Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible {0.47} 0.46
Membership and subscription 16.27 9.27
Miscellaneous expenses 2.84 6.84
Office expenses 255.22 112.96
Outside Services Cost 150.98 122.15
Postage and courier 16.89 11.56
Printing and stationery 11.87 9.07
Rates and taxes 1.07 0.82
Rating support fees 3.74 1.12
Referrals and commissions 2,207.59 1,972.59
Rent {refer note 48) 164.29 127.83
Repairs and maintenance 11.21 9.43
RQC Expenses 0.07 0.04
Securities transaction tax 15.68 -
Seminar and Conference 5.73 0.20
Stamp duty 22.64 14.88
Stock exchange expenses 44.80 21.64
Travelling and conveyance 135.61 80.35

4,652.48 3,552.61




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

33a

33b

for the year ended
March 31, 2023

Auditors' remuneration {Continued)

for the year erded
March 31, 2022

As a Auditor

Statutory audit 2.50 2.50

Limited review 2,10 2.10

Other services including certification work 1.36 3.60

Towards reimbursement of expenses 0.18 0.02
6.14 822

Note : In addition to above, during the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has paid an amount of X 5.56
millions to statutory auditors towards certification fees for Public issue of Non Convertible Debentures. The fees paid
to the statutory auditors has been amortised as over the NMon Convertible debentures period and the same has been

considered in calculation of Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Details of Corporate Sodial responsibility {CSR) activities

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 6.91

Nil

6.91

Nil

h. Amount spent during the year
i} Construction / acquisition of any asset -
ii) On purpose other than above 6.91

6.91
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in miflions)

35 Earnings per share

The computation of earnings per share is set out below:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Profit for the vear (as per statement of profit and loss) 1,422.37 046.49
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of < 10

~ Number of shares at the beginning of the year 430,454,000 347,180,000
| — Number of shares issued during the year - 83,264,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 430,454,000 430,454,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 430,454,000 351,980,532
(based on the date of issue of shares)
Basic and Diluted earnings per share (Amount in Indian rupees } 3.30 2.69

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are na dilutive potentiat equity shares.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Motes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in milfions)
36 Segment reporting (Continued)

Repartable segments

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the underlying businesses of the reportable segments, namely ‘Agency business’and 'Financing
business’ were reclassified into 2 new reportable segments, namely ‘Weaith Management’ & 'Capital Based Business'. The said
reclassification of business segments was based on internal review of businesses carried out by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM) post the internal restructuring exercise carried out by the Company, The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has been identified as the CODM.

An operating segment is classified as reportable segment if reported revenue or absolute amount of result or assets exceed 10% or more
of the combined total of all the operating segments.

Accordingly the Company is considered to operate only in Wealth Management Business.Capital Markets does not excceed revenue or
assets exceeding 10% or more of the combined total of all the operating segments.

Revenue contributed by any single customer in any of the operating segments whether reportable or otherwise dose not exceed 10% of
the Company's total revenue.

The following table gives information as required under the Indian Accounting Standard -108 on Segment Reporting:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| |Segment Revenue
Woealth management 11,929.78 8,494.31
tnallocated 226,49 183.06
Total Income 12,156.27 8,677.37
it [Segment Resuit
Weaith management 2,237.86 1,550.33
Unallocated {381.00) {115.29}
Total 1,856.84 1,435.04
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

it

Segment assets

Wealth management 46,469.20 32,298.53

Unallocated 400.10 364.05

Total 46,869.30 32,662.58
IV |Segment liabilities

Wealth management 39,713.73 27,170.34

Unallocated 370.55 153.45

Total 40,084.28 27,3232.79




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

36 Segment reparting {Continued)

Following table provides details about reclassification adjustment carried out;

Amount as per March

Reclassification/

Reclassified segments

31, 2022 audited Adjustments
Particulars financial statement
I [Segment Revenue
Wealth management - 8,494.31 8,494.31
Agency Business 7,822.54 {7,922.54) -
Financing Business 754.83 {754.83} -
Unallocated - 183.06 183.06
Total income 8,677.37 - 8,677.37
It {Segment Result
Wealth management - 1,550.33 1,550.33
Agency Business 1,383.46 {1,383.46}) -
Financing Business 51.60 {51.60) -
Unallocated {0.02) {115.27} {115.29)
Total 1,435.04 - 1,435.04
Il [Segment assets
Wealth management - 32,298.53 32,798.53
Agency Busingss 21,102.78 {21,102.78) -
Financing Business 11,218.76 {11,218.76) -
Unallocated 341.04 23.01 364.05
Tatal 32,662.58 - 32,662.58
iV [Segment liabifities
Wealth management - 27,170.34 27,170.34
Agency Business 17,911.44 (17,911.44) -
Financing Business 9,265.07 {5,265.07} -
Unallocated 147.28 6.17 153.45
Total 27,323.79 - 27,323.79




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

37 Disciosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits
A} Defined contribution plan (Provident fund):

Amount of X 117.26 millions (P.Y. : X 89.77 millions) is recognized as expense and included in
“Employee benefit expenses” — refer note 32 to the statement of Profit and Loss.
B) Defined benefit plan {Gratuity):

The following tables summarize the components of the net benefit expenses recognized in the
statement profit and loss, the funded status and amounts recognized in the statement of assets
and liabilities for the gratuity benefit plan.

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Service cost
a. Current service cost 32.17 27.24
b. Past service cost - -
c. Net interest on net defined benefit 1.50 1.13
liability
Employer expenses 33.67 28.37

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of DBO at start of the year 207.60 170.39
Service cost
a. Current service cost 32.17 27.24
b. Past service cost -
Interest cost 11.54 3.70
Benefits paid (31.15) (16.27)
Re-measurements
a. Actuarial loss from changed in (6.95) -
demographic assumptions
b. Actuarial {gain)/ loss from changed in {11.07) (3.28)
financials assumptions
c. Actuarial loss/ {gain) from experience 23.10 17.22
over last past year
Transfer in 6.15 3.58
Present value of DBO at end of the year 231.32 207.60




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

37

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits (Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Fair value of plan assets at start of the year 163.66 151.88
Contributions by employer 76.15 16.27
Benefits paid (31.15) (16.27)
Interest income plan assets 10.03 7.57
Re-meosurements
Return on plan assets excluding amount (2.34) 4.21
including in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/ (asset)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 216.35 163.66
Actual return on plan assets 7.70 11.78
Expected employer contributions for the 15.00 45.00

coming year

Net (asset)/ liability recognised in the Balance Sheet:

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Present value of DOB 231.39 270.59
Fair value of plan assets 216.35 163.66
Net Liability/ (Asset) 15.04 43,94
Funded 5tatus [Surplus/ {Deficit)] {15.04) {43.94)
Actuarial assumptions:
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022
Salary growth rate {% p.a.) 7.%p.a 7% p.a
Discount rate {% p.a.) 7.10% p.a 5.4%p.a
Withdrawal rate (% p.a.)
Senior 35% p.a. 25% p.a.
Middle 35% p.a. 25% p.a.
Junior 35% p.a. 25% p.a.
Mortality 1ALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
{Ultimate) (Ultimate)
Interest rate on net DBO/ ({asset) (% p.a.) 5.40 % p.a 5%p.a
Weighted average duration of the obligation 2 Years 3 Years




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

37

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits {Continued)

Movement in Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2023 March 3%, 2022
Balance at start of year loss {21.72) {11.98)
Re-measurements an DBO
a. Actuarial {Loss)/ Gain from changes in 6.95
demographic assumptions -
b. Actuarial {Loss)/ Gain from changes in 11,07 3.28
financial assumptions
c. Actuarial (loss)/gain from experience {23.10) (17.22)
over last past year
Re-measurements on plan assets
Return on plan assets excluding amount {2.34) 4.21
including in net interest on the net defined
benefit hability / (asset)
Re-measurements on Asset Ceiling
Changes in the effect of limiting a net - -
defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling
excluding amount included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset)
Balance at end of year loss (29.14) {21.72)
Sensitivity Analysis
DOB increases / (decreases ) by iMarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1% Increase in salary growth rate 5.84 7.76
1 % Decrease in salary growth rate (5.64) (7.35)
1 % Increase in discount rate {5.58} {7.40)
1 % Decrease in discount rate 5.89 7.96
1% Increase in withdrawal rate {0.36) {0.46)
1 % Decrease in withdrawal rate 0.37 0.50
Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 1 - 8.00
vear)
Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 3 0.00 24.00
vear)

0.00 indicates amount less than 0.01 million




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency: indian rupees in millions)

37 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits {Continued)

Movement in Net (Liability}/ Asset

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net {Liability)/ Asset at the start of the {43.93) (18.51)
year
Net transfer in (6.15) {3.58)
Movement during the year
Current service cost (32.17) {27.24)
Past service cost - -
Net interest on net DBO {1.50) {1.13)
Re-measurements (7.44) (9.74)
Contributions/ benefits 76.15 16.27
Net deficit at the end of the year {15.04) (43.93)
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

40 Contingent liabilities, commitments and lease arrangements

a. Legal claims

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal enviranment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherent in its
operatians. As a result, the Company is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regutatory proceedings in the ordinary course of its
business. The Company has format controls and poiicies for managing fegal claims. Based on professional legal advice, the Company
provides and/or discloses amounts in accordance with its accounting policies. At year end, the Company had several unresolved legal
ciaims however individually any of the claim is not material. The aggregate value of claim against the Company is X 227.98 milliens (P.Y.

% 231.67 miliions}.

b. Contingent liabilities

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

{a} Ciaims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

227.98

231.67

C. Leases

The Company has entered into commercial leases for premises and equipment.

i) Movement of Right of Use - leaschold premises

Particulars March 31, 20223 March 31, 2022
Opening Bafance 312.80 380.00
Addition / {disposal} during the year 240.37 60.10
Less: Amortisation on Right of Use - leasehold premises {161.35) {127.30)
Closing Balance 391.82 312.80

ii} Movement of Lease fiability

Particulars Miarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 405.18 484.09
Addition / {disposal) during the year 231.92 39,74
Add: Accretion of interest 46.46 48.06
Less: Payment during the year {218.22) (176.71)
Closing Balance 465.34 405.18

iii) Short term lease commitments

Short term lease payments for the year as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within cne year 6.17 5.91
Tota! 6.17 5.91
iv) Other disclosures

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars Years / Amount Years / Amount
The leases have an average life of between {in years) 5 S
The total lease payment for the year {amount) 348.31 279.55
Lease rent expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss for short term lease 130.09 102.34
{amount)




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Braoking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {Continued )
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
40 Contingent liabilities, commitments and lease arrangements {Continued)
d. Capital and other commitments

i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets amounts to ¥ 42,63
millions (net of advances) (P.Y. % 55.35 millions).

i) The Company has provided bank guarantees aggregating to ¥ 2,500.00 millions (P.Y. T 750.00 millions) to The Bombay Stock
Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirement.

ilf} The Company has pledged fixed deposits with bank aggregating ta % 1,250.00 rnillions (P.Y. % 375.00 millions) for abtaining the above
bank guarantees.

e. The Company has filed Appeal u/s 37 of Arbitration and Concifiation Act, 1996 against the Arbitral Award/ Order passed in favour of
Jayant Sanghavi and Pratham Investment. Both the matters are pending before the Hon'ble Court for finat hearing. The clients were
asked to deposit a sum of % 215.38 millions {including interest amount} by the Hon'ble Court. This amount will be recoverable fram the
Hon'able Court after final order provided it is in our favour.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency: indion rupees in millions)

41

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosure™
List of related parties
a. Name of related party by whom control is exercised

PAGAC Ecstasy Pte. Ltd - Ultimate Holding Company
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited} - Holding Company

b. Mames of related parties who exercise significant influence over the Company's Holding Company (till March 30,
2023)

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

¢. Subsidiaries of the entity exercising significant influence over the Company's Holding Company with whom
transactions have taken place (till March 30, 2023)

Allium Finance Private Limited

ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

ECL Finance Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited

Edel Investments Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Edelgive Foundation

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited {subsidiary of Edelweiss group till October 18, 2021)
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Nide Home Finance Limited (formerly Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)

Edelweiss investment Adviser Limited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Zuno General tnsurance Limited {formerly Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)

d. Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place

Nuvama Asset Management Limited {formerly ESL Securities Limited)
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {formerly Edelweiss Finance & investments Limited)

e. Associate of Holding Company
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss Capital Services Limited)

f. Fellow entities of the ultimate holding company with whom transactions have taken place

PAG Investment Advisors Pte, Ltd.
Asia Pragati Strategic Investment Fund




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

41  List of related partles {Continued)

g. Key Management Personnet (KMP)

Rahul Jain - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Prashant Mody - Executive Director

Ashish Kehair - Non Executive Director

Kamafa Kantharaj - Non Executive Director (til November 25, 2022)

Ananya Suneja - Non Executive Director (w.e.f. November 25, 2022 till March 22, 2023}
Vinod luneja - independent Director

Birendra Kumar - Independent Director

Sheetal Gandhi - Chief Financiat Officer (w.e.f. August 11, 2022}

Viral Thanawala - Chief Financial Officer (till August 10, 2022}

Prachi Mathur - Company Secretary {till May 25, 2022)

Dipankar Basu - Company Secretary {w.e.f. May 25, 2022 til] August 10, 2022)
Vandana Das - Company Secretary (w.e.f. October 20, 2022 till January 23, 2023)

h. Key Management Personnel of holding Company with whom transactions have taken place

Shivaraman fyer - Chief Financiat Officer (tili October 31, 2022)

Anisha Motwani - Independent Director

Venkatchalam Ramaswamy - Non Executive Director (till March 17, 2023)
Shiv Sehgal - Executive Director

i. Relatives of Key Management Personel with whom transactions have taken place

Virendra Kumar Jain {Father of Rahul Jain - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Pratiksha Jain (Spouse of Rahul Jain - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Madhubala Jain {Mother of Rahul Jain - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Priya Nayak Kehair {Spouse of Ashish Kehair - Non Executive Director)

Sangeeta Thanawala (Spouse of Viral Thanawala - Chief Financial Officer)

Viral Thanawala Hindu Undivided Family {till August 10, 2022)

Svastha Consuiting LLP {LLP Controlled by Ashish Kehair-Non Executive Director)

j- Relatives of Key Management Personel of holding company with whom transactions have taken place

Aparna Tuluvinakoppa Chandrashekar (Spouse of Venkatchalam Ramaswamy - Non Executive Director) (till March 17,
2023)

Kenai Advisors LLP (Venkatchalam Ramaswamy - Non Executive Director} (till March 17, 2023}

Mabella Investment Adviser LLP {Rashesh Shah - Non Executive Director) (till March 17, 2023)

Vidya Shankar (sister of Venkatchalam Ramaswamy - Non Executive Directar) {tili March 17, 2023)

Notes :-

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL") along with its subsidiaries holds 43.74% in the equity shares of Nuvama
Wealth Management Limited ("NWML"). Till March 30, 2023, EFSL had significant influence over NWML.

With effect from March 31, 2023, pursuant to the amendment agreement dated March 9, 2023 made to the amended
and restated shareholders” agreement dated March 18, 2021 between EFSL, Edelweiss Global Wealth Management
Limited { "EGWML"} , PAGAC Ecstasy Pte Ltd {“PAGAC”) and NWML, the amendment to the articles of assaciation of
NWML, EFSL has lost its significant influence as per Ind AS 28 on NWML,

(=




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

41 List of related parties {Continued)

2 Pursuant to the composite scheme of arrangement and amalgamation under section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,
2013 as sanctioned by NCLT Hyderabad on February 9, 2022 and as sanctioned by NCLT Mumbai on January 10, 2022,
Edel Land Limited ("Amalgamated or Resulting Company’}, ECap Equities Limited {'Demerged Company’ — defined in the
scheme as demerged undertaking and thereby entire activities, business, operations and undertakings of the Demerged
Company forming part of the Trading and Capital Markets business) and EC Commeodity Limited {‘Amalgamating
Company’} has been amalgamated with effect from April 1, 2020 (‘the Appointed date’}. Accordingly, the financial
statements of Edel Land Limited have been prepared taking into account the effect of the composite scheme of
arrangement and amalgamation and the said crders.The merger order has been filed with ROC on March 25, 2022,

3 The Wealth Management Business undertaking was demerged from Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited
(EGWML) into Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {NWML) {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited} (ESL} vide NCLT
order dated March 31, 2022, Accordingly, all related party balances outstanding as at March 31, 2022 refating to Wealth
Management Business undertaking of EGWML are considered to be transacted with NWML (ESL) and disclosed
accordingly.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Notes to the finzncial statements {Continuad)
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41  Disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 - “Related Parnty Dictlasure” (Continued):

Transactions with related partles :

Nature of Transaction

Related party name

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Capital account transactions

Issue of equity shares to fuvama Wealth Manapement Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securitias Limited) - 1,000.00
_Curent aceaunt tzanzactions
Loans taken from Aliium Finance Private Limltegd - 906,60
£del Finance Company Limited M 1,300.00
Huvemna Wealth finance Umited (formerly Edelwaelss Finance & Investments imited) 72,610.30 19,625.90
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,000.00 -
Loan repaid 1o Allium Finance Private Limited - 9000
Edel Finance Company Limited - 1,300.00
Nuvama Wealth finance Limited (formerly Edelwelss Finance & Investments Limited) 72,610.30 21,765.80
Edehwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,600.09 -
Inter Carporate Deposit {{CD) taken from Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly Securities Limited) . 900.00
Inter Corporate Deposit {ICD) paid to Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly Edel Securities Limited) - 300,60
Sevondary marhet transactions with clearing house
hargin placed with tuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited) 146,484.76 140,365.80
Margin withdrawn from Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly Edelwelss Custodial Services Umited) 141,214.29 138,355.86
Brokerage income received from ECap Equities Umited (formerly Edet Land Limited) .06 4.53
Edelwelss Asset Management Limited - 0.16
Jelwelss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited ¢.37 0.14
b Key Manaperizl fersonnel .27 0.25
o Key Manageriz! Personnel of Holding Company (X1} 0.00
I Relatives of Key Managerial Personne! of Holding Company £.55 -
Lo I, Relatives of Key Manaperial Personnet 0.45 Q.00
Fees income received fram ECL Finance Limited 2.17 -
Edel Finance Company Limited 3.48 2358
[ Edel Investments Limited 15.00 -
ECap Equities timited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 877.51 49%.74
Edelcap Securities Limited 17.85 -
Edel Alternative Asset Advisors Hmited 1,550.38 310.53
Edehwelss Asset Management Limited 615.14 22.48
Muvarna Clearing Services Limited {formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited) 43.9% 101.13
e Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {formerly Edelweiss Finance & i Limited} 92.63 256.24
Edclweiss Financial Services Limited 380.48 411.556
. Edelweiss Gall Insutance Brokers Limited - 5.65
Zuno General insurance Limited a2 361
Edeh Global Wealth Manag Umited - 1.88
Nido Home Finance Limited (formerly Edetwelss Bousing Finance Limited} 97.40 -
Edslveiss fnvestment Adviser Limited 17.95 -
Nuvaimaz Wealth A Umited (formeriy Edel Securities Limited) L 1.88
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 289.04 -
Edel Tekio Life Insurznce Company Limited 185.09 99.57
Nuvamna Asset Management Limited (formerly ESL Secutities Limited) 1484 11.55
Banner fees recovered from Edel Tokio Life Insuranee Company Limited $3.80 -
[« i and brokerage expenses paid to Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerty Edelweiss Securities Limited) 116.41 -
lelweiss Financial Services Limited 3400 -
Refersal Charges paid 1o PAG Investment Advisers Ple. Ltd. - 41.21
1iquidity Suppert charges paid te Asis Pragati Strategic Investment Fund - 100.60
Rental incame from ECL Finance Linnited - 0.86
Edel investments Limited - 6.07
Edalcap Securities Limited . G.07
Edelweiss At ive Asset Advisors Limited - 0.07
Edalweiss Asset Management Limited ok 0,25
Edelweiss Asset Reconsiruction Company Limited - 0ga8
il Custodial Services Limited {formerly £ Capitat Services Limited) 0.51 0.14
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly Edelweiss Custodlal Services Limited) 3.25 1.06
N Wealth finance Limited (formerly Edelweiss Finance & investments Limited) 22.82 18.86
Edelwelss Financlal Services Limited .10 -
Edelweiss Gaflagher insurance Brokers Limited - 1,11
Edelwaiss Global Wealth Management Limited . 0.14
Nido Home Finance Limited (fermetly Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited} . 0.1¢
Edelweiss Retall Finance Limited - 0.31
fel Rural & Corporate Services Limited - .11
Nuvama Wealth Management iimited (formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited) 2.40 223




Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
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41  Disciosure as required by Ing AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosuze” {Continued):

Transaclions with related partles:

Nature of Transaction Related party name March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Interest paid on loan to Allium Finance Private Limited - i6.51
Edet Finance Company Limited - 27.35
Nuvarna Wealth Finance Limited (formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments timited} 113.36 245.20
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate $ervices Lim/ted 11.36 -
Interest paid on inter-Corporate Deposit paid to Nuvamz Wealth Manapement Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited) - 20.69
Interest income on debt instrement Huvama Wealth Finance Limited (formerly Edzlweiss finance & Investiments Limited) 1.92 159
Interest received on margin {rem Novama Clearisg Services Himited {Tormerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited) 513.05 305.01
Shared premises cost pald to ECL Finance Limited 0.35 a.23
ECap Equities Limited {{arzerly Ede! Lang Limited 0.09 -
Edclwelss Alternative Asset Advisers Limited - D09
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss Custedial Services Umited)} 83.89 96,79
Edelweiss Global Wealth b Limited - 0.24
Hido Home Finance Limited {formerly Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited - 0.03
Edelweiss Retad Finance Limited - 0.02
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.99 0231
Nuvama Wealth Management timited {formerly Edelwelss Securities Limited} 36.48 G.08
Llearing charges paid to Nuvama Clearing Services timited (formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited} 93.05 66.60
Software usage charges paid to Edefwelss Global Wealth Management Limited - 98.55
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited) 144.31 -
Technology Shared Service Cost paid ta Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.68 -
Nuvamna Wealth Management Limited {formerfy Edel Sacurities Limited} 22545 -
Edelcap Securities Limited 2.32 -
paid to Nuvama Wealth M: {imited (formerly Edelwelss Securities Limited) 23.61 16.50
Enterprise/ Corporate cost paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Umited 2,76 -
Nuvama Wealth M Limited {farmerly Edelweiss Secusities Limited) 239.02 98.80
Rating support fees paidte Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.02
Contribution to C5R Edalgive F d 6.91
Charges recavered from Edeleap Securities Limited - 0.00
Key Managerial Personne! 0.33 -
Relatives of Key Manageriat Personnel 0.24 -
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel of Holding Company 0.01 -
Employee Stock Optian Cost paid to Edetweiss Financial Services {imited 5.46 1637
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited} £2,25 37.33
Employee Stack Apprediation Rights paid to Edelweiss Financlal Services Limited 7.9% 7.21
Employee Stock Cption Cost reversed Edal Financial Services Limited 31.20 30.26
Employee Stock Appreciation Rights Cost reversed Edelwaiss Financial Services Limited - 712
Insurance Premium Paid to Zune General Insurance Limiteg 62,58 4850
Edelwaiss Tokie Lie Insurance Company Limited 17,45 72.84
Rentai security deposit paid to Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 1.05 -
Purchase of securities from Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited) 5,353.53 3,133.72
Edelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited - 513.81
Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 115.88
Edelweiss Securities And {nvestments Private Limited M 0.69
Sale of securities to Nuvama Wealth fingnce Limited (Formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Uimited) 3,819.45 115.91
Key M. ial Persannel - 12.43
Issuance of Non Convertible Debentures to Huvama Wealth Finance Limited {formerly Edelweiss Finance & (nvestments Limited) - 717.84
Subscriptian of Hon Convertible Debentures of ECap Equities Limited {formerly Ede! Land Limited) - 504.19
Cest reimbursement paid 1o ECL Finance Limited .25 Q.24
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 1.65 8.50
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {formerly Edelwaiss Finance & Investments Limited) 2.08 0.03
Edelweiss Financla! Services Limited - 166
Edelwelss Retail Finance {imited - 0.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 0.94 5.81
Nuvama Weatth Management Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited) 125.32 147.75
Nuvama Asset M. Limited (formerly ESL Securities Limited) .19 -
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly Edelwelss Custodial Services Limited) 0.00 -
Nuvama Custedial Services Limited {formerly Edelwelss Capital Services Limited) 5.45




Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited}
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41 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 —*“Related Party Disclosure” (Cantinued):

Fransactions with related parties :

Nature of Trznsaction Aelated party name March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Cest reimbursement recovered from ECap Equities Umited (formerly Edel Land Limited) .01 -
Edohweiss Azset M. t Limited - 0.00
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 003 0.04
Edelweiss financlal Services iimited 0.02 -
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Umited) 0.02 82.30
Edelwelss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited - 0.2
Nido Home Finance Umited (formeriy Edelwelss Bousing Finance Limited) - 0.08
Nuvama Wealth Manapement Limited {formerly Edelwaelss Securities Limited] 0.27 -
Nuvama Asset Management Limited (formerly ESL Securities Limited) 0.04 0.00
Purchase of Preperty Plant and Equipment & Intangible ECL Finance Limited 0.0
Assets from -
Ediel Finance Company Limited .00 0.0%
ECap Equitias Limited {farmerly Edel Land Limited) - 0.01
Edelcap Securitles Limited - Q.00
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.01
NI Custodial Services Limited (formcriv Edelweiss Capital Services Limited) - Q.00
Edelwelss Comtrade Umited - 401
Nuvama Clearlng Services Umited (formerly Edelweiss Custedial Services Limited) M 8902
Nuvama Wealth Finance Umited [formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Umited} - £.10
Edalweiss Financial Services limited 0.00 0.15
Edelweiss Gallagher insurance Brokess Umited - 0.10
Edalweiss Globa! Wealth Management Limited - 0.23
Nide Home Fnance Limited {formerly Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) " 0.00
Edalwaeiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.03 0.01
(3 iss Retall finance Limited - 0.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Secrvices Limited Q.00 0.05
HNuvama Wealth Management Limited (formerly Edelweiss Securitfes Limited) - 0.25
Huvama Asset Management Limited (formerly ESL Securities Limited) . 0.08
Edel Investments Limiled -
| Salz of Pruperty Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets to .00
Edelcap Securitias Limited 0.00 -
Edelgive F if . .00
Edelwelss Asset Mans Limited - 2,00
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss Capital Services HUmited) - 0.01
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Umited} - 0.62
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited [formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments limited} - 0.06
Edelweiss Financiat Services Limited - 0.06
Edelwelss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited - 0.00
Edelwelss Global Wealth Management Limited - 0.02
Edefweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited - 0.03
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited) - 0.34
Nuvama Asset Mar Umited (formerly ESL Securities Limited) M 0.00
: Director's Sitting Fees paid to Ind dent Directors 8.70 0.04
Ri ion paid to ¥ey Managerial Parsonnel 66.31 25,81
Balances with related parties
Interest accrued and dus on loan taken Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {(farmerly Edelwelss Finance & Investments Umited} 3.04 -
Debi securities held by Nuvamz Wealth Finance limited {formerly Fdelweiss Finance & Investments Limited) 55.45 -
Trade payahles to Asla Pragati Strategic Investment Fund 104.00 100.00
ECE Finance Limited - 0.02
Ede! Finance Company Limited - .00
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) - £.53
de] Alternative Asset Advisors Limited - 2.43
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {fermerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Lirnited) . 8.43
Nuvama Wealth Finance Umited (formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited) 2270 66.46
Edelwelss Financlal Services Umited - 0.15
Edelwaiss Investment Adviser Limited - 0.0¢
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 132
Nuvama Weilth Management Limited {formerly fdelweiss Securities Limited) 203.47 7150
Nuvama Custodiat Services Limited {{formerly Edefweiss Capital Services Limited} 6.44 -
Nuvama Asset Management Limited (formerly ESL Securities Limited .63 -
PAG Investment Advisors Pte. Ltd. - 41.21
Key Managerial Personnel 1.78 .63
Relatives of Key K gerlat Personnel 2.53 0.13
Other payables ta Nuvama Custodial Services Limited (formerly Edel Capital Services Limited) - 0.41
Nuvama Weafth Finance Limited (formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited) - 0.51
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited) 2243 37.33
Muvama Asset M timited (formerly £SL Securities Limited) 0.52 1.23




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (fo
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rmerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

41  Disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 ~ "Related Party Disclosure” {Continuedj:

Transactions with related parties :

Nature of Transaction Related party nama ®March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Trade receivables from £CL Finance Limited - 0.22
£del Finance Company Limited - 1.69
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limitad) - 150.90
Edelcap Securities Limited . 0.00
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisars Limited - 206.37
Edalwaiss Asset Management Limited - 1.87
Edelwaeiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - .22
Nuvama Custodlal Services Limited {formerly Edelwelss Capital Services Limited) .07 8402
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited) 6.04 3.17
Nuvama Wealth finance Limited {formetly Edeb Finance & Investments Limited) 2.76 39.69
Edelweiss Finanelal Services Limited - 1.87
Zuno General Insurance LimHed M 0.45
Nide Home finance Limited {formerly Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) - G.11
Edefweiss Retail Finance limited - 413
Edep Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.03
Edelweiss Secuzities And Investments Private Limited - 0.02
Nuvama Wealth Mar timited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited) 2.77 0435
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited - 2178
Nuyvama Asset Management Limited {ormerly ESL Securities Limited) 3.80 365
Key Managezial Personne! - 0.01
Qther Receivables from ECL Finance Limited - 0.09
Edel Finance Company Limited - 0.38
Edelweiss Asset Managemant Limited . 0.1%
Nuvama Custodiaf Services Limited {formerly Edelweiss Capital Services Limited) 3.01 -
Nuvama Claaring Services Umited (formerly Edclwelss Custodial Services Limited) .68 0.06
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (fermerly Fdel Finance & Investments Limited) 1.27 £1.30
Edelwelss Financiaf Services timited - 0.87
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.34
i Nuvarma Wealth Management Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Hmited) 5.01 482
|
{ vendor Advance given Edelweiss Tokio Life insurance Company Limited - 20.69
' tzcurities hald for trading ECap Fquities Limited (farmerly Edel Land Limited) - 504.19
Nuvama Wealth Finance Umited (formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited) 1,425.43 0.25
_Accrued interest on Securities held for trading Wealth Finance Limited {formerly £ Finance & Investments Limited) 0.01 £.00
Margin placed with Ctearing Services Limited {formerly Edelwelss Custodial Services Lirnited) 14,308.71 8,029.24
Accryed Interest on Margin placed with Nuvama Clearing Services Umited [formerly Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited} 126,21 9168
Off Bajance sheet bafances
Liguldity support svailed fron: [Off Balance sheet) Asiz Pragati Strategic Investment Fund 10,600,003 10,000.00
Corporate Guarantee availed from {Off Balance sheet) Nuvama Wealth Manzpement Limited (formerly Fdalwalss Securities Limited} 10,633.50 4,000.00

0.00 indicates ameiit less than 0.01 miflions

Hotes -

1. The iatra group Company loans are generally in the nature of revolving demand loans, Loan taken from parties are disclosed based on actual amount takenfrepaid during the reporling period.

2. All above transactions are in the ordinary course of business

and sre 3t arms length price.

3, trdormation refating to remuneration paid to Key Managerial Person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, campensated absence and deferred bonus which are provided for group of
employees on an averal! basis. These are included on cash basis. The variable compensation induded herein is on cash basis.
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a2

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company maintains healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. In ozder to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
payment to sharehalders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares or raise/repay debt. No changes have been made to the
objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

In addition to above, the Company is required to maintain minimum net worth as prescribed by regulatory authorities. The
managerment ensures that this is complied.
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43 Risk Management

The Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company's activities, it is
managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It is also subject to various operating and business risks.

Risk management structure

The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for
approving the risk management strategies and principies. The Board has appointed the Risk

Committee, which is responsibie for monitoring the overall risk strategy of the Company.

The Risk Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and

reviewing principles, frameworks, policies and limits.

The Risk Group is respansible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure
an independent control process is maintained. The risk team works closely with the Risk

Committee, to ensure that procedures are compliant with the overall framework.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss the Company may face due to current/potential inability or
unwillingness of a customer or counterparty to meet financial /contractual obligations. Credit risk
also covers the possibility of losses associated with diminution in the credit quality of receivables
and loans. The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss

from defaults.

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. The
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account

historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Trade receivables including Sebi Margin Trading Facility {'SMTF’)

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime {Expected

Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
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43 Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
The ageing wise trade receivable use to assess credit risk is as follows:

Bucketing March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Ageing) Carrying value Carrying value
0 - 30 Days 4982.92 2724.78
31 - 60 Days 386.08 265.79
61 — 90 Days 107.75 3.03
More than 90 Days 123.01 147.19
Less: Impairment allowance (141.56) {144.48)
Total 5,458.20 2,996.31

Employee Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’} Loans

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of default and loss given
default. The Company has devised an internal model to evaluate the probability of default and
loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the loans are classified
into various stages as follows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing

High grade 0 dpd and 1 to 30 dpd Stage |
Standard grade 31 to 90 dpd Stage ll
Non-performing

individually impaired 90+ dpd Stage Il

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss {ECL) computation is not driven by
any single methodology, however methodology and approach used must reflect the following:

1) An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

2) Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions;
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43 Risk Management {Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

3} Time vzlue of money

While the time value of money element is currently being factored into ECL measurement while
discounting cash flows by the Effective Interest Rate (EIR), the objective of developing a
macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to address the first
two requirements. This has been achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk

component in order to make it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Significant increase in Credit Risk (SICR)

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 {credit-impaired)
for ECL calculations, in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due. Classification of
assets from stage 1 to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are
more than 30 days past due have been identified as accounts where significant increase in credit
risk has been observed. These accounts have been classified as Stage 2 assets. When such events
occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer
as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is

appropriate.

Probability of Default (PD)

Probability of default {PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon.
Company calculates the 12 month PD by taking into account the historical trends of the
Loans/portfolio and its credit performance. In case of assets where there is a significant increase

in credit risk / credit impaired assets, lifetime PD has been applied.

Loss Given Default {LGD)

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account,
among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be
realised and the time value of money. Since the Company is into the business of fending against
securities, haircut of 25% is applied on the value of the collateral, based on basel haircut values
for corporate securities. The exposure amount that is over and above the collateral {with haircut)
is considered as the effective exposure. The LGD of 65% is used for the unsecured exposure the

portfolio carries.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default is defined as
Exposure at Default (EAD). While the drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure for the
Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These exposures are of
the nature where the Company provides future commitments, in addition to the current credit.
Therefore, the exposure will contain both on and off reformatted statement of assets and

liabilities values.
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43 Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk {Continued}

Following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and ECL on Loans:

Bucketing March 21, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Stage) Carrying value ECL Carrying value ECL
Stage 1 13,099.15 2.51 9,880.28 0.06
Stage 2 - - - -
Stage 3 1.79 1.79 1.59 1.59
Total 13,100.94 4.30 9,881.87 1.65

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable
to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the
cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.

Liquidity risk emanates from the mismatches existing on the balance sheet due to differences in
maturity and repayment profile of assets and liahilities. These mismatches could either be forced
in nature due to market conditions or created with an interest rate view. Such risk can lead to a
possibility of unavailability of funds to meet upcoming obligations arising from liability maturities.
To avoid such a scenario, The Company ensures maintenance of adequate Liquidity Cushion in the
form of Fixed Deposits, Mutual Funds, Cash, etc. These assets carry minimal credit risk and can be
liquidated in a very short period of time. Further, The Company has undrawn bank facilities and
liquidity support from its Holding Company.
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43afif)

Risk Management {Continued)

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractuat maturities

The tabie below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial liabilities as at year end:
Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were te be given immediately. However, the Company expects that the counterparties will nat request repayment

on the earliest date it could be required to pay.

As at March 31, 2023 Less than 3 Imonthstob | Smonthstol2 | 22monthsto2 >3 years Total
months months months years
Derivative financial instruments 380.29 - - - - 380.29
Trade payables 13,138.19 - - - - 13,138.19
Debt securities 5,468.31 1,165.78 1,993.14 10,617.35 2,394.07 21,638.69
Borrowings {other than debt securities} 3,222.21 - - - - 3,222.21
Other financiai liabilities 662.79 50.59 67.93 18951 104.27 1,075.09
Total undiscounted financial Habilities 22,871.79 1,216.37 2,061.07 10,506.90 2,498.34 39,454.47
As at March 31, 2022 Less than 3 3 months to 6 & months to 12 12 manthsto 3 >3 years Total
months months months yaars
Trade payables 14,129.95 - - - - 14,129.95
Debt securities 5,454.30 76.30 1,181.01 813.50 1,420.03 8,945.64
Borrowings {other than debt securities} 2,249.06 - - - - 2,249.06
Other financial liabilities 804.73 38.65 268.01 185.77 64.53 1,361.69
Total undiscounted financial lfabilities 22,638.54 114.95 1,449.02 980.27 1,484.56 26,686.34
Analysis of financial assets by remaining contractuat maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial assets as at year ended:
[As at Maren 31, 2023 Less than 3 3monthsto6 | Smonthsta12 | 12monthsto3 >3 years Total
. manths months months years
Cash and cash equivalent and other bark balances 1,635.19 1,306.89 1,797.03 1.04 - 4,740.15
Derivative financial instruments 1,415.90 - - 1,447.11 260.97 3,123.98
Securities held for trading 3,030.00 - - - - 3,030.00
Trade receivablas 4,041.14 577.82 654.90 144.34 - 5,458.20
Loans 860,29 1,829.00 10,865.44 - - 13,554.73
Other financial assets 15,829.53 - i8.94 118.52 3090 15,997.89
Total 26,812.05 3,713.71 13,376.31 1,711.01 291.87 45,904.95
As at March 31,2022 Less than 3 3 months to 6 6 months to 12 12 months t0 3 >3 years Total
months months months years
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 3,545.27 1,068.39 1,838.12 242 - 6,454.20
Derivative financial instruments - - - 5.24 195.46 200,70
Securities held for trading 191167 - - - - 1,811.67
Teade receivables 2,560.14 10.01 255.04 171.12 B 2,896.31
Loans 489.54 308.70 8,784.70 - - 10,082.94
Other financial assets 9,888.88 - 13.66 117.68 28.29 10,048.51
Total 18,395.50 1,B87.10 10,891.52 296.46 223.75 31,694.33
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43 Risk Management {Continued)
43b Coflateral held and other credit enhancements
The tables shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset. They also shows the total fair value of collateral, any surplus

colfateral {the extent to which the fair value of coliateral held is greater than the exposure to which it relates), and the net exposure to credit
risk:

As at March 31, 2023 Maximum exposure Principal type of collateral
to credit risk
{carrying amount
befare ECL)

Financial assets

Loans (Gross) 13,100.94 |Securities

Trade receivables {Gross) 5,599.76 |Securities, Fixed deposits, Bank Guarantee etc.
Total 18,700.70

As at March 31, 2022 Maximum exposure|Principal type of collateral

to credit risk
{carrying amount

before ECL)
Financial assets
Loans [Gross) 9,881.87 |Securities
Trade receivables {Gross) 3,140.79 |Securities, Fixed deposits, Bank Guarantee etc.
Total 13,022.66

Colfoteral information is not applicable to financiol ossets ather than those mentioned above.
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43 Risk Management {Continued)

43c  Total market risk exposure

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars Carrying amount|  Traded risk Non-traded risk | Carrying amount Traded risk Non-traded risk
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivaient and other bank balances 4,710.15 - 4,740.15 6,454,20 - 6,454,20
Derivative financial instruments 3,123.98 3,123.58 - 200,70 200.70 -
Securities held for trading 3,030.00 3,030.00 - 1,5911.67 1,911.67 -
Loans 13,096,64 - 13,096.54 9,880.22 - 9,880.22
Trade receivables 5,458.20 - 5,458.20 2,8956,31 - 2,996.31
Cther Financlal assets 15,997,89 14,935.05 1,061.84 10,048.51 8,151.04 897,47
Total 45,446.86 21,090.03 24,356.83 31,491.61 11,263.41 20,228.20
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial Instruments 380.29 380.28 - - - -
Borrowings [other than Debt Securities) 3,222.21 - 3,222.21 2,249.06 - 2,249.06
Debt securities 21,638.69 - 21,638.69 8,945.64 - 8,945.64
Trade payables 13,138.19 - 13,138.19 14,129.95 - 14,129.95
Other liablities 1,075.09 - 1,075.0% 1,361.69 - 1,361.69
Total 39,454.47 380.29 39,074.18 26,686.34 - 26,686.34
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43 Risk Management {Continued}

43d  Market Risk [Price Risk}

The Company has exposure in quoted equity shares and derivative instruments. Accordingly there is effect on the Company's profitability
due to variation in market price as mentioned below.

43d(i) index Price Risk
Index price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of
equity indices.

As at March 31, 2023 Increase in Effect on Profit Decrease in Effect on Profit
basis points before tax basis points kefore tax
Embedded derivative 25 4.27 25 (4.27}
Exchange traded derivatives 25 354 25 (3.54}
As at March 31, 2022 Increase in Effect on Profit Decrease in Effect on Profit
hasis points before tax basis points before tax
Embedded derivative 25 0.50 25 {0.50)
Exchange traded derivatives 25 3.47 25 {3.47)

43d {ii) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level
of individual investment in equity share prices.

As at March 31, 2023 Increase in Effect on Profit Decrease in Effect on Profit
hasis points before tax basis points hefore tax
Equity shares, mutual fund and debt fnstruments 25 7.58 25 (7.58)
As at March 31, 2022 Increase in Effect on Profit Decrease in Effect on Profit
basis points before tax basis points before tax
Equity shares and debt instruments* 25 3.63 25 (3.63)

*does naot include unlisted equity shares remeasured at realisable values basis agreements entered with prospective buyers.
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44 financial assets available to suppart future funding

2. Following table sets out availability of assets to support funding:

March 31, 2023 Pledge as tollateral] others frefer note 1) | Available as collatersl] athers frefer note 2) Total carrylng amount
Cash and cash eguivalents - 233.07 982.4% 1,215.48
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3,429.11 - - 85.56 3,524.67
Derivative financial instruments - 3,123.68 - - 3,123.98
Securities held for trading 1,228.98 - 1,801.02 . 3,030.00
Trade recelvables 5,458.20 - - - 5,458.20
ioans 7,883.20 - 5,113.44 - 13,096.64
QOsher financial assets - 15,848.51 130.45 18,24 1%,997.89
‘Total assets 18,09%.49 18,472.49 1,271.98 1,096.91 45,446.86
March 31, 2022 Pledge as collateral] othars frefer note IF | Available as collateral! others frefer note 2} Tatal carrying amaunt
Cash and cash equivalents - 829,51 1,505.38 2,534.89
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3,203.03 - - 516.28 4,119.31
Derivative financial instruments - 200,70 - - 200.70
Securities held for trading - - 1,911.67 - 1,911.67
Trade receivables 2,996.31 - - - 2,996,31
i.oans 4,455.87 - 5,424,235 - 5,380.22
Other financial assets - 9,828.27 206.58 13.66 10,048.51
Total assets 10,655.21 10,028.97 8,372.10 2,435.32 31,491,611

Nate

1 Represents assets which are not pledged and the Company believes it is restricted from using ta secure funding far legat ar other reasan.
2 Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the Company would not 2onsider readily available to secure funding In the normal course of business.

b. Undrawn borrowing cammitments

Thz Company has undrawn borrowing commitments from banks amounting to % 1,090,50 millions as on March 31, 2023 (P.Y. : % 1,010,00 miions).
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45  Falr Value measuremant
a. Valuation principles
Fair value is the price that would be recaived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (ar most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is diractly obsorvable or estimated using a valuation techaique. In

order to show how falr values have bean derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigques:

Level 1 —valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that Company can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 - valuation technique using cbservable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly o indiractly
ohsermable markat data available over the entire period of the instrument’s Jife,

{evel 3 — valuation tachniqua with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include ene or more upebservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

b. Valuation governance framework
The Campany's fair value methodology and the governaace aver its mode!s inciudes a number of controls and other procedures te ensure appropriate safeguards are in
place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives {including thair valuation methodologies) are subject to approvals by various functions of the

Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values ate determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or validation is used.
For inactive markels, Company saurces alternative market information, with greater weight given to informatian that is considered to be more refevant and reflable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also responsible for establishing
procedures governing valuation and ensuring falr values are in compliange with aceeunting stzndards.

c. The following table shows an analysis of financial Instruments recarded at falr value by level of the falr value hisrarchy

As at March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments

Exchange traded derivatives 1,492.33 47.50 - 1,535.83
Embedded derivatives in market-inked debentures - - 1,708.08 1,708.08
Total derivative financial instruments - A 1,492.33 47.50 1,708.08 3,247.91

Financia! Assets held far trading

Equity Shares 45.85 0.0 - 45.86
Mutuat fund 1,228.98 - - 1,228.98
Debt instruments - $,755.16 - - 1,755.16
Tota! Financial assets held for trading < B 1,274.83 1,755.17 - 3,030.00
Total Financial assets measurad at fair value {A+B} 2,767.16 1,802.67 1,708.08 6,277.91

Liabllities measured at falr value on a recurring basis

Exchange traded derivatives 351.68 - - 3191.68

Total derivative financial Instruments 391.68 - - 391.68
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value 391.68 0 - 391.68
As at March 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recuring basis

Dervative financial instruments

£xchange traded derivatives 0.83 - - 0.83
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 200.70 200.70
Total derivative finanzial instruments - A 0.83 - 200.70 201.53

Financial Assets held for trading

Equity Shares 947.28 459.94 - 1,407.23
Debt instruments - 504.44 - 504.44
Total financial assets held for trading - B 947.28 964,38 - 1,511.67
Total Financial assets measused at fair value (A+8) 948.11 964.38 200.70 2,113.20

Liabitities measurad at fair value on 2 recuzring basis

Derivative inancial instruments
Exchange-traded derivatives - . - -

Total Financial liabilities measured at fair value - - - -
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45  Fair Value measwement [Continued)

d. Valuation technigues {Continued'}

Debt securities:

Whilst most of these instruments are standatd fixed rata securities, Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yialds prevailing
in the market as at the reporting date. The Company has used quoted price of stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively.

Equity Shares:
Tha majority of equity shares are actively traded on stack exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basks, Suth instruments are classified as Levet 1.
Equity shares in non listed entities are initially recagnized at transaction price and remeasurad at sach reporting date with realizable values basis agreements entered
with prospective buyer, Such equity shares are classified at level 2,

e. There have been no transfers batween levels during the year ended March 31, 2022

f.  The follawing table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Embedded derivatives

Assets measured at falr value an a recurring basis Assels Llabilities Net Balance

Asat Apei1,2022 200.70 - 200,70
Issuances 1,517.18 . 1,517.18
Change in Vaiue of the Options (9.80} - {5.80)
As at March 3%, 2023 1,708.08 . 1,708.08

Embedded derivatives
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis Assets Liabilities Net Balance

AsatApril 1, 2021 - - R

Issuances 212.08 - 212.08
Chznge in Value of the Options (1138} - (11.38}

AsatMarch 31, 2022 200.70 - 200,70
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a7

Foreign currency transactions

a.

b.

The Company has incurred following expenditure in foreign currency {on accrual basis).

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Purchase of Securities - 1,017.92
Referral & other expenses 4,27 46.57

The Company has earned following income in foreign currency (on accrual basis).

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fees & Advisory Income 8.19 9.32

Additional disclosure on fixed deposits

1.

Fixed deposits aggregating to X 307.85 millions {P.Y. £ 2,107.00 millions) have been pledged
with exchanges for meeting margin requirement.

Fixed deposits aggregating to X 13.63 millions (P.Y. % 15.13 millions) have been pledged with
exchanges for meeting base capital requirement.

Fixed deposits aggregating to X 30.13 millions {P.Y. % 233.40 millions) have been pledged with
exchanges towards arbitration.

Fixed deposits aggregating to X 1250.00 millions (P.Y. X 375.00 millions) have been pledged
with bank for availing bank guarantees.

Fixed deposits aggregating to X 1450.00 millions (P.Y. 2 1,300.00 millions) have been pledged
with banks for availing Working Capital Demand Loan (WCDL)/ bank overdraft.

Fixed deposits aggregating to X 375.50 mitlions (P.Y. X Nil) have been pledged with banks for
availing intraday facility from bank.

Fixed deposits X 2.00 millions (P.Y. % 2.00 millions) have been placed with Pension Fund
Regulatory & Development Authority (PFRDA).
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Cost sharing

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited), being
the Holding Company incurred expenditure like branding fee, senior management cost,
technology and administrative cost etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and its
subsidiaries and associates. These costs expended are reimbursed by the Company on the basis
of number of employees, actual identifications, etc. On the same lines, branch running costs
expended (if any) by the Holding Company for the benefit of its subsidiaries and associates are
recovered by the Holding Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the
expenditure heads innotes 32 and 33 include reimbursements paid and are net of
reimbursements received based on the management’s best estimate.
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Segment wise disclosure as required as per Regulation 31 (2) of Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015

Segment wise disclosure for Revenues received for Insurance intermediation and other income

from Insurers as per Regulation 31 (2) of Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of

India (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited
Brokerage commission earned 0.47 0.14
Commission earned on selling life insurance policies 187.22 99.57
Banner fees recovered 99.90 -
Group Life insurance for employees paid 17.45 22.76
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited
Commission earned on selling general insurance policies 3.73 3.61
Group mediclaim insurance for employees paid 62.58 48.50
Gallagher Insurance Brokers Private Limited
Research fees received 5.60 5.65
Rent and related cost recovery - 1.11
Cost reimbursement recovered - 0.02
Purchase of securities - 513.81
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.10
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.00
HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited
Commission income earned 111.18 17.08
Banner fees recovered 37.50 -
Star Health and Alfied Insurance Company Limited
Commission income earned 0.95 1.13
Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited
Commission income earned 37.77 -

0.00 indicates amounts less than 0.01 millions




Muvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

MNotes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

50

51

52

53

54

55

Large Corporate Disclosure

Pursuant to SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018, the
Company has been identified as large corporate and therefore the following information is being
disclosed as at March 31, 2023:

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1 Name of Company Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited
{Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking
Limited)
2 CIN U65100GJ2008PLC077462
3 Cutstanding long term borrowing (at | Rs. 12,560.54 millions

face value} of the Company as on
March 31, 2023.

4 Highest Credit Rating During the | CRISIL AA-/Stable
previous Financial year along with name
of the Credit Rating Agency.

S Name of Stock Exchange in which the | BSE Limited
fine shall be paid, in case of shortfall in
the required borrowing under the
framework.

Additional regulatory information required under {WB) {xiv) of Division Ili of Schedule |lIi
amendment, disclosure of ratios, is not applicable to the company as it is in broking business and
not an NBFC registered under section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

There have been no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly
returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the
books of accounts,

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any other lender.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of
Companies beyond the statutory year.
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56 The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year.

57 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial
year.

58 There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company.

59 The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors,
KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly

with any other person.

60 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

61 a. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend.
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b.R

atio Analysis and its elements

Pursuant to SEBI's Operational circular SEBI/ HO/ DDHS/ P/CIR/ 2021 /613 dated August 10, 2021 to the extent applicable to
Commercial Papers, information as required under Regulation 52(4) of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 for the vear ended March 31, 2023 is as mentioned befow -

particulars Represent in terms Year ended Year ended
of March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022,
1.|Debt-equity Ratio {Refer note 1) Times 3.66 2.10
2. [Net worth {) {Refer note 2) % in million 6,785.02 5,338,79
3.{Debt Service Coverage Ratic {Refer note 3) Times 0.29 0.23
4.{Interest Service Coverage Ratio [Refer note 4) Times 2.25 429
5.]Outstanding redeemable preference shares {no.of shares) Nos. NA NA
6.}Outstanding redeemable preference shares (including dividend T in million NA NA
accrued but not due)
7.|Capital redemption reserve Z in million - -
8.|Dehenture redemption reserve ¥ in miflion 207.83 207.83
9.|Net profit after tax g in million 1,422.37 946.49
10.[Earnings Per Share {%) {Face Value of ¥ 10/- each)
- Basic per share (Rs.) 3.30 2.69
- Diluted per share (Rs.) 3.30 2.69
11.|Total debt to Total assets (%) (Refer Note 5) % 53.04% 34.27%
12.INet profit margin (%) {Refer Note 6) % 11.70% 10.91%
Note:
1. Debt-equity Ratio = Tatal debt/ Net worth

~

Total Debt = Debt securities + Borrowings other than debt securities

Net worth = Equity share capital + Instruments entirely equity in nature + Other equity

Debts Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) = Profit before tax, Exceptional items and Finance cost excluding IND AS 216 impact}/ (Finance cost

excluding IND AS 116 impact + Principal repayment in next six months)

interest Service Coverage Ratio (ISCR) = Profit before tax, Exceptional items and Finance cost exciuding IND AS 116 impact)/ Finance cost

excluding IND AS 116 impact

Tatal debt to Total assets = {Debt securitles + Borrowings other than debt securities)/ Total assets

Net profit margin = Net Profit after tax for the year/ Total Income

Current ratio, Long term debt to working capital, Bad Debts to account receivables ratio, Current liability ratic, Debtors turnover, Inventory

turnover and Operating margin (%) are not applicable.
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For March 21, 2023

Name of Struck off Company

Nature of transactions with
struck-off Company

Balance outstanding

Relationship with the
Struck off Company

Arihant Capital Markets Ltd Referral and commission - {Vendor
:B: Wealth Advisors Private Limited Referral and commission - {Vendor
PCS Securities Ltd Referral and commission - {Vendor
Quantum Securities Pvt Ltd Referral and commission - {Vendor
Sowing Bean {india) Private Limited Referral and commission - |Vendor

Redington india Limited

Commission Income

Advisory Fees - Client

Orion Richiz Stock Broking Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Laiji Financial Advisors Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Arpit Fincap Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Sagar Associates Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Verb Consultants Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Om Sai Associates Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Shashwat Wealth Creators Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Arham Securities Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Neelam Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Bharati Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Indu Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Prem Kumar Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

Tigerlily Capital Advisors Private Limited

Broking and depository

Trading Client

(For March 31, 2022

Name of Struck off Company

Nature of transactions with

Balance outstanding

Refationship with the

struck-off Company Struck off Company
Aakanksha Leasing And Services Private Limited Referral and commission - Vendor
Br Wealth Advisors Private Limited Referral and commission - Vendor
DNM Finserve Private Limited Referral and commission - jVendor
PCS Securities Limited Referral and commission - iVendor
Faiguni Sales Trading Agency Private Limited Broking and depository 0.00 Retail client
Jyoti Financial Consultant Private Limited Broking and depository 0.00 |Retail client

0.00 indicates amount less than 0.01 millions

{A) During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{B} During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign
entities {Funding Party} with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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64 Subsequent events

There have been no events or transactions which have occurred since the date of Balance Sheet or
are pending that would have a material effect on the financial statements and requires adjustment
to the accounting estimates and disclosures included in the financial statements at that date or for
the year then ended, other than those reflected or fully disclosed in the financial statements.

No events have occurred that are of such significance in relation to the Com pany’s affairs to require
mention in a note to the financial statements in order to make them not misleading regarding the
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows or changes in equity of the Company.

65 The Company has complied with the Rule 3 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 amended on
August 5, 2022 relating to maintenance of electronic books of account and other relevant baoks
and papers. The Company's books of accounts and relevant books and papers are accessible in
India at all times and backup of accounts and other relevant baoks and papers are maintained in
electronic mode within India and kept in servers physically located in India on daily basis,
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(Currency: indian rupees in milfions)

66  Previous year comparatives

Previous year’s numbers have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to
current year’'s presentation/ classification.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

oo >

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Membership No.: 102102

Mumbai
May 24, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Prashant Mody
Executive Director

Ciief Executive Officer
Din: 00387505 Din: 03101048

el

Ashis air Sheetal Gandhi
Non Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
Din: 07789972

Rohan Jadhav

Company Secretory

Mumbaj
May 24, 2023
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